
 

Please contact Caroline Halpin on 0151 471 7394  for further information. 
The next meeting of the Committee is on Thursday, 18 June 2009 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 

ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH  
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
 

PART 1 
 
 

Item Page No 
  
1. MINUTES 
 

 

2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
personal or personal and prejudicial interest which they have in 
any item of business on the agenda no later than when that item 
is reached and, with personal and prejudicial interests (subject 
to certain exceptions in the Code of Conduct for Members), to 
leave the meeting prior to discussion and voting on the item. 
 

 
 

3. LEADERS PORTFOLIO 
 

 

 (A) LIVERPOOL CITY REGION MULTI AREA 
AGREEMENT   

 

1 - 16 

4. CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE PORTFOLIO 
 

 

Executive Board 
 
Thursday, 4 June 2009 2.00 p.m. 
Marketing Suite, Municipal Building 

Public Document Pack



 
 
  
Item Page No 
  

 

 (A) CO-OPTEE TO CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 
PPB   

 

17 - 19 

 (B) CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE'S PLAN - KEY 
DECISION   

 

20 - 84 

 (C) PRIMARY SPECIAL EDUCATION NEEDS REVIEW   
 

85 - 91 

5. PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION, REGENERATION AND 
RENEWAL PORTFOLIO 

 

 

 (A) ESTABLISHMENT OF THE DARESBURY SCIENCE 
AND INNOVATION CAMPUS JOINT VENTURE   

 

92 - 98 

6. CORPORATE SERVICES PORTFOLIO 
 

 

 (A) PARISH ISSUES- HALEBANK AND SANDYMOOR 
PARISH COUNCILS   

 

99 - 100 

7. HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE PORTFOLIO 
 

 

 (A) REDESIGN OF DAY SERVICES FOR PEOPLE WITH 
PHYSICAL AND SENSORY DISABILITIES AND 
OLDER PEOPLE WITH ADDITIONAL NEEDS   

 

101 - 106 

 
 
In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is 
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation 
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and 
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block. 



 
REPORT TO:   Executive Board 
 
DATE:    4th June 2009 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director Corporate Policy 
 
SUBJECT: Liverpool City Region Multi Area Agreement  
 
WARDS:  All  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report seeks Executive Board approval for the development of the 

second phase of the Liverpool City Region’s Multi Area Agreement 
(MAA). One of the proposals set out in the Government’s Sub-National 
Review of Economic Development and Regeneration (published in July 
2007) was for Government to strengthen the role of local government 
in delivering economic growth through supporting collaboration by 
groups of local authorities via the development of voluntary MAAs. As a 
result the first element of the Liverpool City Region (LCR) MAA, the 
Employment and Skills Platform, was approved and signed by the 
Prime Minister in January 2009. 

 
1.2 The remaining three Platform papers for Economy, Housing and 

Transport, together with a revised background paper, the Story of 
Place, have now also been developed and it is proposed that they be 
submitted to Government for agreement on the 9th June 2009.  This 
report will therefore give an outline of each of the three Platform papers 
together with the ‘Asks’ of Government and related indicators and 
targets. The report requests that Members endorse the elements of the 
MAA to be negotiated with Government. 

 
1.3 The report will also provide Members with an update on: 

• The implementation of the Employment and Skills Platform; 

• Delivery/performance management arrangements for the MAA. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board 
 

(1) Endorses the elements of the Multi Area Agreement to be 
submitted to Government on the 9th June 2009, namely the 
revised Story of Place and the Economy, Housing and 
Transport ‘Asks’ of Government;  

 
(2) Agrees the timetable and process for the submission of the 

MAA in June 2009, including the production of an Equality 
Impact Assessment for the MAA; and 

 

Agenda Item 3aPage 1



(3) Notes the progress made in implementing the Employment 
and Skills Platform of the MAA which was signed with 
Government in January 2009. 

 
 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1.1 In September 2008 Executive Board considered and agreed proposals 

to develop further the City Region governance model, including the 
setting up of a shadow City Region Cabinet and associated policy 
boards.  Members also endorsed the submission to Government of the 
first element of the LCR MAA – the Employment and Skills Platform 
together with a background paper – the Story of Place and agreed that 
three further Platform papers covering the Economy, Housing and 
Transport should be developed. (Agenda Item 6b, Minute No.41 
refers). 

 
3.1.2 The proposals for strengthening city region co-operation that were 

agreed in October 2008 are based on a long history of partnership 
working between  six Liverpool city region local authorities of Halton, 
Knowsley, Liverpool, St Helens, Sefton and Wirral as well as with Joint 
Boards. This reflects the understanding that issues such as 
worklessness, job creation and housing can be more effectively 
addressed and co-ordinated at a city region level.  The proposals 
recognised that there are a number of policy and programmes where 
collaboration to address common issues at a city region level can bring 
added value to the work of each local authority.  It was therefore 
agreed that LCR joint working would build on the current structures and 
focus on those activities that: 

• individual local authorities cannot undertake alone; 

• will achieve better value outcomes through collaborative decision 
making; 

• will lever in additional/maximise existing public funding. 
 
3.1.3 The proposals also recognised that formalising the city region 

structures also provided opportunities to strengthen linkages with 
neighbouring local authorities and that Warrington, Cheshire West and 
Chester, and West Lancashire would be invited to be ‘Associate’ local 
authorities.    

 
3.1.4 It was also noted that the sharing of experience and exchange of best 

practice across the city region will lead to improvements in service 
delivery in respect of the level of activity delivered and also its quality.  
Joint working should also result in benefits through achieving 
economies of scale and thereby provide the opportunity to maximise 
spend on front facing public services.  The principle of providing value 
for money underpins the rationale for city region working with 

Page 2



structures being based on existing sub regional partnerships wherever 
possible. 

 
3.1.5 In agreeing to progress joint working through the development of the 

MAA, city region partners recognised that this would be a voluntary 
agreement between local authorities, their partners and Government to 
work collectively to improve local economic prosperity.  As such it has 
provided LCR partners with an opportunity to identify common issues 
where collaborative working can bring added benefits and, in addition, 
where freedoms and flexibilities granted by Government could increase 
the effectiveness and impact of this joint working.  Government outlined 
the key elements that should be contained in an MAA, namely that it 
should: 

• Contain a Story of Place which shows a sound understanding of the 
economic issues and challenges to be addressed at the sub-
regional level and the added value which can be delivered through 
an MAA; 

• clearly articulate what the city region will deliver in the longer term 
and what specific ‘Asks’ are requested of Government which will 
help to achieve delivery on the ground; 

• Demonstrate robust and accountable governance mechanisms.  
      

3.1.6 As a result the LCR MAA reflects issues which each local authority has 
identified as being ones where they see the benefits of working 
together at the city region level and where collaboration will increase 
local effectiveness. 

 
3.2 THE LIVERPOOL CITY REGION MAA 
 
3.2.1 Building on the City Region Development Programme agreed in 2006 

which set out a number of key strategic priorities for the city region, the 
MAA has been developed  by identifying areas where joint working is 
currently taking place across the local authorities and where greater 
collaboration with Government could increase the effectiveness of this 
work.  The work falls broadly into four areas and the LCR MAA 
therefore consists of a Story of Place and four elements – the 
Economy, Employment and Skills, Housing and Transport Platforms.  

 
3.2.2 It was agreed that the development of the MAA would be an iterative 

process with the Story of Place and Employment and Skills Platform 
being agreed with Government in January 2009 and the remaining 
Platforms (together with a new Story of Place) being submitted in June 
2009 for negotiation and agreement with Government. 

 
3.2.3 The MAA is now being developed in a time of global economic 

recession.  The focus of the MAA is on the longer term and aims to 
address the underlying weaknesses of the LCR economy – this 
includes low skill levels, low workforce productivity, low business base 
and high levels of worklessness.  However, the MAA also provides an 
opportunity to work in partnership with Government to aim to minimise 

Page 3



the adverse impact of the economic downturn for our residents, 
communities and businesses, as well as ensuring that we are better 
positioned for future sustainable recovery and growth. 

 
3.2.4 The Story of Place and the three Platform papers - Economy, Housing 

and Transport will be placed on the intranet with the approved 
Employment and Skills Platform.  As was the case with the 
Employment and Skills Platform, these papers will be subject to the 
negotiation process with Government which will progress during June 
2009, following approval of the Platforms’ Asks by each of the six local 
authorities.  However, any amendments that result from these 
negotiations are likely to provide further explanation of the Asks 
together with greater clarity of the impact on the city region.  As such 
the main principles are unlikely to change. 

 
3.3 THE REVISED STORY OF PLACE 
 
3.3.1 The Story of Place was submitted and agreed with Government in 

January 2009 and it covers the key issues and challenges faced by the 
city region.  Since its submission a number of changes have taken 
place, including the economic downturn, and the Story of Place has 
now been updated to reflect these changes and provide the 
background to why developing the MAA will bring added value to the 
work of the city region partners. 

 
3.4 THE ECONOMY PLATFORM  
 
3.4.1 The Story of Place outlines the vision for economic growth over the 

next twenty years, the good progress that has been made over the past 
ten years and the challenges and opportunities still facing the 
economy. The Economy Platform builds on this to recognise that whilst 
the underlying prospects for growth across the LCR show an 
improvement on their historical performance, that a ‘business as usual’ 
approach will not close the gap between the city region’s performance 
and that of the North West and UK. What is needed is a step-change in 
economic performance and the platform focuses on four 
transformational actions, which it evidences as providing the stimulus 
for accelerating this growth. These actions are Culture and Tourism, 
SuperPort, Low Carbon Economy and the Knowledge Economy.   

 
3.4.2 It is important to recognise that the actions laid out in the economy 

platform comprise only part of the efforts that are being made to 
improve the economy of the City Region.  This includes local 
employment and enterprise initiatives (including LEGI), local 
neighbourhood renewal, infrastructure investment, inward investment, 
sector development and the business support simplification 
programme.  These are not mentioned in detail in the economy 
platform other than in the context of a) the transformational actions or 
b) where Government can do something specific to address a 
particular barrier. 

Page 4



 
3.4.3 The Economy Platform identifies the key features underpinning the 

choice of these transformational actions as being that they will deliver: 

• Greater outcomes – able to contribute to closing the gap; 

• Build on the distinctive features of the LCR economy – ie reflecting 
those areas where we have existing market advantage; 

• Be future looking – re-engineering the economy to be globally 
competitive by building on our existing strengths; 

• Require greater co-operation – no individual district can deliver the 
scale and extent of the gains needed to close the gap 

 
3.4.4 As a City Region we have put in place mechanisms to develop and 

deliver the four transformational actions.  These actions are long term 
strategies, and are at different stages of development.  The Asks of 
Government in this Platform are therefore concentrated on entering 
into a long term, strategic relationship with Government to progress 
these transformational actions.  These are set out in Appendix 1 to this 
report, but in summary focus on: 

 
ASK 1: Implementing a Liverpool City Region Visitor Economy Strategy 
A Liverpool City Region Strategy for the Visitor Economy will be published by 
September 2009. 
 
ASK 2: Establish effective dialogue mechanisms with Government 
Government and LCR will convene a time limited task-and-finish group to 
develop Liverpool SuperPort.  
 
ASK 3: Developing a Low Carbon Economy 
LCR together with Government and its agencies will jointly review the 
emerging Low Carbon evidence base. Subsequently, by March 2010 we will 
develop and agree a strategy and initial action plan to implement a low carbon 
economy in the City-Region which secures significant job creation and 
environmental benefits. 
 
ASK 4: Potential major projects 
Government and LCR will explore by March 2010 the viability of a Mersey 
Tidal Energy project, a Northern BRE centre and a LCR trial site for next-
generation distribution networks [such as the Smart Grid concept]. 
 
ASK 5: Partnership on the Knowledge Economy Group 
Government departments and their agencies agree to work with LCR to 
develop and agree a Knowledge Economy Plan by July 2010  
 
3.4.5 Whilst the Asks reflect longer term aspirations, the Platform also 

recognises that closer collaboration between the LCR partners to 
progress this programme will result in benefits to the city region over 
the lifetime of the MAA – up to 2012.  As a result performance 
indicators have been identified for this platform with the aim of 
increasing the growth rate in the areas of Level 4 skills, GVA growth 
and VAT business density.  The summary of these outcomes is to 

Page 5



remain above the North West growth rates with the ultimate aim of 
closing the economic performance gap over the medium term.  These 
indicators are set out at Appendix 2. 

 
3.4.6 The performance indicators for the MAA do not attract any additional 

funding.  The indicators reflect the Government’s new performance 
framework for local authorities and their partners and from which the 
indicators and targets agreed by local authorities through the Local 
Area Agreement (LAA) process have been drawn. However, the MAA 
is an agreement to deliver activity at a City Regional level that cannot 
be achieved at a local level and is therefore a separate and distinct 
process from that of the LAA. 

 
3.5 THE HOUSING PLATFORM 
 
3.5.1 The Housing platform builds on a history of joint working across the six 

local authorities and has been progressed by the Housing and Spatial 
Planning Working Group.  Joint working also includes: 
• Development and delivery of NewHeartlands HMR programme 

(2003--present) 
• Evidence base for Regional Spatial Strategy (2005--08) 
• Liverpool City Region Housing Strategy (2006--07) and Action Plan 

(2007--08) 

• Two joint Growth Point bids (Liverpool--Wirral and Halton--St 
Helens--Warrington) 

3.5.2  The platform has been progressed to reflect the following principles: 

• Good quality housing can underpin economic performance  

• We need to balance aspirations for housing growth with the need to 
'finish the job' of housing renewal  

• Our priorities are based on the joint working we have already done  

• Our proposals will accord with regional priorities set out in RSS and 
RHS 

3.5.3 These principles have given rise to the following housing priorities in 
the Liverpool City Region: 

• Continue to improve the quality of existing housing  

• Deliver appropriate numbers - and types - of new homes in the right 
places  

• Ensure that people have appropriate and affordable housing  

• Help residents of vulnerable areas access education, training, 
employment, and other relevant services. 

3.5.4 The housing 'Asks' are summarised below and are included at 
Appendix 1. 

Page 6



• Supporting growth and renewal  

o Development of a Joint Investment Board (based on the 
Homes and Communities Agency ‘single conversation’)  and 
the agreement of a single joint investment plan.  This will 
align key infrastructure funding schemes and associated 
policy in housing, regeneration and transport.  

• Affordable warmth  

o In light of the adoption of the regulation allowing European 
Structural Funds to be used for energy efficiency projects, 
aligning the City Region’s allocation for affordable warmth 
programmes with, in order to support the development of 
training programmes for the unemployed to implement the 
programme 

• An effective private rented sector  

o The opportunity to pilot extended selective licensing in order 
to drive up the quality of housing in the private sector. 

3.5.5 The Indicators relating to these Asks are set out at Appendix 2 and 
targets will be developed in negotiation with Government. 

 
3.6 THE TRANSPORT PLATFORM 
 
3.6.1 The vision for the Transport Platform is of a fully integrated, sustainable 

and safe transport network, which supports economic and social 
regeneration, ensures good access for all, and which is operated and 
maintained to the highest standards to protect the environment and 
ensure good quality of life for all. This vision supports the LCR MAA 
aspirations across economic growth, skills and employment, and 
housing.  

 
3.6.2 The aim of the proposals in the Transport Platform is to seek to assist 

business and regeneration, reduce our carbon output and provide all 
members of the community with equal opportunity to access jobs, 
training and other opportunities.  
 

3.6.3 The proposals are designed to integrate the key LCR priorities with our 
responsibilities for delivering the shared national transport priorities.  In 
particular, we will work with the DfT to take forward Delivering a 
Sustainable Transport System, (DaSTS) at LCR level so we can 
develop a transport system designed to grow the economy in parallel 
with reducing carbon outputs.  Finally, our proposals will help to deliver 
against appropriate Public Service Agreements (PSA) and Department 
Strategic Objectives (DSO) targets, and we will link with Local Strategic 
Partnerships (LSPs) Local Area Agreements (LAA) to help deliver their 
transport targets. 
 

Page 7



3.6.4 The Asks of the Transport Platform are set out at Appendix 1 and have 
been developed to progress three key proposals: 

 
Proposal One - Improving accessibility to employment and   
opportunities  
Access to employment and education opportunities are essential for 
the City Region. All evidence supports the view that this is not simply a 
transport issue and that land use/locational choice are critical, as are 
the policies and funding of key agencies such as DWP through Job 
Centre Plus.  
Summary - Government Departments and its agencies agree to work 
with the LCR Transport Partnership to facilitate a package of measures 
to secure a long term planning and funding framework that provides 
clear equality of opportunity to those without access to private 
transport. 

 
Proposal Two - Improving the capacity and connectivity of the LCR 
network. 
The geographic location of the LCR means that connectivity to the 
regional and national networks is critical.  Its importance as a major 
port and centre of an extensive logistics sector reinforces this 
importance. The LCR has agreed to build on this strength in developing 
‘Superport’ as one of its transformational programmes.  This is seen as 
a potential key area in the future economic recovery of the LCR post 
recession. DaSTS has confirmed this by its recent upgrading of port 
access to national/international status. Linking between Proposal 1 and 
Proposal 3 is critical and there are concerns about capacity constraints 
on the local rail network. 
Summary - Government Departments and its agencies agree to work 
with the LCR Transport Partnership to examine and develop improved 
national, regional and local connectivity, addressing network capacity 
issues.  

 
Proposal Three - Low Carbon Transport Demonstration City - Reducing 
emissions and addressing climate change 
Supporting national economic competitiveness and growth whilst 
reducing transport’s carbon dioxide emissions and tackling climate 
change is identified in DaSTS as the single greatest challenge facing 
transport. The LCR Transport Partnership is committed to meeting 
these twin goals and the requirements of the Climate Change Act, and 
supporting the LCR transformational programme around a low carbon 
economy. The preferred outcome, as detailed in DaSTS, the Climate 
Change Act and the LCR low carbon economy vision, is clear , but 
developing the options and most cost-effective solutions is the next 
stage. 
Summary - DfT and its agencies agree to work with the LCR Transport 
Partnership to examine and develop the options that will deliver the 
DaSTS challenges of supporting economic growth  and tackling climate 
change.  

 

Page 8



3.6.5 Indicators and targets for this platform draw upon the LAA indicators 
selected by local authorities and the existing indicators within the two 
LTPs that aim to measure the key national outcomes and local 
priorities.  They are set out at Appendix 2. 

 
3.7 THE EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS PLATFORM- UPDATE  
 
3.7.1 The Employment and Skills Platform was agreed with Government in 

January 2009 and it sets out a programme which addresses 
worklessness and skills in order to improve outcomes for communities 
across the city region.  It was informed by the work of the City 
Employment Strategy Board, one of fifteen pathfinders agreed by the 
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) in 2007 in areas where 
there was a need to significantly improve employment rates.   

 
3.7.2 The performance indicators and targets agreed with Government are 

set out in the table at Appendix 2 and are supported by a number of 
Asks.  A progress update for each Ask is summarised below: 

 
3.7.3 A new Employment and Skills Board, with a strong private sector focus, 

will set the strategic approach to employment and skills for the city 
region.  This will be established in summer 2009.  Terms of reference 
are under development.   

 
3.7.4 An early priority is to develop a LCR Employment and Skills Strategy 

and Commissioning Plan by September 2009, and a set of actions for 
city region partners to agree and progress.  An Advisory Group has 
been established and is taking forward this work, including the 
development of robust labour market assessment and comprehensive 
stakeholder consultation during the summer months.  

 
3.7.5 Flexible New Deal – Local funding is being used to enhance services 

delivered under the DWP’s Flexible New Deal and Specialist Support 
Contract.  Additional provision for Liverpool City Region residents who 
live in our most disadvantaged areas has been agreed with DWP as 
part of their tendering activity.  We are still awaiting a decision from 
DWP on whether Halton is included within a single Merseyside 
commissioning geography.   

 
3.7.6 Fit for Work Service Pilot – Partnership bid submitted to the 

Department of Health and DWP for c£1m pilot programme linking 
health and employment programmes across the city region, targeting 
support on SMEs and third sector organisations.  In developing the bid 
the City Employment Strategy Board has worked closely with the 
Directors of Public Health and PCT Chief Executives. 

 
3.7.7 Data Sharing - The LCR is participating in a data sharing pilot led by 

CLG and DWP along with Leeds and Kent local authorities.  A 
business case has been submitted to DWP requesting a suite of data 
at the lowest spatial level available so that it remains annonymised to 

Page 9



inform the LCR Commissioning Plan and subsequent targeting of 
partnership resources at the small area level.    

 
3.8 DELIVERY OF THE MAA – PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 

ARRANGEMENTS  
 
3.8.1 In October 2008 Cabinet confirmed that the shadow LCR Cabinet 

would be the Accountable Body for the MAA with delivery through the 
appropriate Policy Boards once they were in place.  Development of 
the MAA has been overseen by the shadow LCR Cabinet and 
progressed by existing city region partnerships to enable input from 
each local authority area together with key partners from a range of 
sectors. 

 
3.8.2 It is intended that the actions to deliver the Asks identified within each 

of the MAA Platforms will be taken forward by a range of city region 
partners.  Progress will be monitored by the relevant city region 
partnership group / Policy Board and reported to the shadow LCR 
Cabinet as part of the performance management arrangements.   
 
 

4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 

4.1 Implications for Halton: The development of the Liverpool City 
Region MAA is allied to the assertion that strong city regions are crucial 
to economic growth and in order to achieve this, Local Authorities and 
other partners need to place strategic priorities and actions within a 
coherent policy framework.  

 
4.2 The development of an LCR MAA presents a number of opportunities 

for Halton. Primarily, this approach places Halton firmly within the 
Liverpool City Region governance arrangements and as such enables 
Halton to participate more fully in sub-regional decision-making 
processes.  

 
4.3 It cements the borough’s position as one of the six Liverpool City 

Region core authorities. 
 
4.4 There will also be examples where Halton’s ability to lobby will be 

strengthened, through the joint working outlined above and there will 
also be occasions where Halton’s ‘offer’ will be enhanced by our ability 
to draw on assets from the sub-region as a whole. 

 
4.5 In addition, we will have an opportunity to raise our profile with other 

sub-regional partners particularly when we can show case best 
practice in service delivery.  

Page 10



 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Further work is required by sub-regional partners to both map and align 

MAA and LAA targets and it is suggested that the achievement of 
some macro-economic targets will best be achieved through a 
coordinated sub-regional approach. If this work is progressed it could 
free Halton partners to concentrate on meeting more clearly defined 
local targets for local people.  

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 

6.1 The Liverpool City Multi Area Agreement could have a positive impact 
on the delivery of all the Council’s priorities. An improved strategic 
framework which clearly presents sub-regional priorities could 
potentially lead to the delivery of improved local outcomes through 
synergy and economies of scale gains, stronger partnerships and 
greater flexibilities.  

 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 The MAA sets out a proposed contract with Government to establish 

the Liverpool City Region as a thriving international City Region by 
2030. However, in light of the current economic climate, there are risks 
associated with presenting over-ambitious targets to Government. This 
risk is currently being minimised through continued dialogue with 
Central Government departments. 

 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 

 
8.1 The development of an Equality Impact Assessment has been included 

in the work programme for the ongoing development, monitoring, 
review and evaluation of the MAA.  However, it is also worth noting that 
all the MAA platforms recognise the need to support both 
disadvantaged areas and vulnerable residents in presenting our asks 
of Government. 

 
 
 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Document 
 
Liverpool City Region 
Multi Area Agreement 
Story of Place and 
Platforms 

Place of Inspection 
 
Municipal Building, 1st 
Floor, External Funding 
Division  

Contact Officer 
 
Wesley Rourke 

Page 11



APPENDIX 1    

 SUMMARY OF THE LCR ASKS 

1. ECONOMY 

SUMMARY OF ASKS 
 

ASK 1: Implementing a Liverpool City Region Visitor Economy Strategy 
A Liverpool City Region Strategy for the Visitor Economy will be published by 
September 2009.   Government departments and their agencies will establish, 
with LCR, a time limited task-and-finish group between July and December 2009 
to develop and agree an action plan to implement the Strategy which will include, 
where appropriate, supportive additional policy flexibilities to be implemented by 
Government to maintain.  The aim of the action plan would be to maintain our 
status as the second cultural capital of England. 

 
 

ASK 2: Establish effective dialogue mechanisms with Government 
Government and LCR will convene a time limited task-and-finish group to 
develop Liverpool SuperPort.  This group will review the evidence base and 
prepare an action plan by the end of 2009. The Action Plan will be presented to 
Leaders and Ministers, and will cover policy support, access and connectivity, 
land assembly, sustainability, marketing and global positioning. 

 
 

ASK 3: Developing a Low Carbon Economy 
LCR together with Government and its agencies will jointly review the emerging 
Low Carbon evidence base.  Subsequently, by March 2010 we will develop and 
agree a strategy and initial action plan to implement a low carbon economy in 
the City-Region which secures significant job creation and environmental 
benefits. 
 
 
ASK 4: Potential major projects 
Government and LCR will explore by March 2010 the viability of a Mersey Tidal 
Energy project, a Northern BRE centre and a LCR trial site for next-generation 
distribution networks [such as the Smart Grid concept]. 
 
 
ASK 5: Partnership on the Knowledge Economy Group 
Government departments and their agencies agree to work with LCR to develop 
and agree a Knowledge Economy Plan by July 2010 which will include, where 
appropriate, supportive additional policy flexibilities to be implemented by 
Government in the areas of funding, upgrading digital networks, marketing, 
graduate and internship support, business support and realising the potential of 
key sites. 
 
 
 

Page 12



 
2. HOUSING 

Ask 1 – Supporting Growth and Renewal 

• Government departments and their agencies will establish a Joint 
Investment Board with Liverpool City Region partners, based on the HCA 
‘single conversation’, to develop by the end of 2009 a single joint 
investment plan to more effectively co-ordinate and align all key 
infrastructure funding streams and associated policy, particularly covering 
housing, regeneration and transport. 

• Government and the Liverpool City Region partnership will establish a 
time limited task-and-finish group (to include and RSL and developer) to 
review evidence about the Liverpool City Region housing market and the 
totality of products and policy levers available to partners to develop the 
market and subsequently prepare recommendations for Leaders and 
Ministers by the end of 2009 on any further actions, products or policy 
flexibilities that might add value. 

Ask 2 – Affordable Warmth. 

• We welcome that Government  has adopted the regulation allowing 
European Structural Funds to be used for housing energy efficiency 
projects and we wish to work with Government and the NWDA to align 
these funds with the City Region’s allocation for affordable warmth 
programmes in order to support the development of training programmes 
for the unemployed to implement the programme. 

Ask 3 – An effective private rented sector 

• We welcome Government’s intention to consult on aspects of the Rugg 
Review including a national register of private landlords and additional 
criteria for selective licensing regimes.  We would welcome the 
opportunity to pilot extended selective licensing in order to drive up the 
quality of housing in the private sector. 

 

TRANSPORT  

3.1 Proposal One - Improving access to employment and opportunities
  

  
Synopsis - Access to employment and education opportunities are essential for 
the City Region. All evidence supports the view that this is not simply a transport 
issue and that land use/locational choice are critical, as are the policies and 
funding of key agencies such as DWP through Job Centre Plus.  
 
Summary - Government Departments and its agencies agree to work with the 

LCR  
Transport Partnership to facilitate a package of measures to secure a long term  
planning and funding framework that provides clear equality of opportunity to  
those without access to private transport. 
 

Page 13



ASK 1 Government to re-affirm their commitment to accessibility planning 
and  

ensure priorities are set out in clear lines of responsibilities for all   
     stakeholders. 
 
ASK 2 Government Departments and its agencies agree to work with the 

LCR      
      Transport Partnership to facilitate a package of measures to secure 

a long     
          term planning and funding framework that provides clear equality of     
       opportunity to those without access to private transport. 
 
ASK 3 To underpin this approach, Government and local partners to map 

funding    
     streams and timelines and to agree how synergy between different 

funding     
       streams can be achieved to enable a single accessibility strategy to 

be  offered and delivered 
 
ASK 4 In order to establish long term funding for this approach, the LCR 

and     
        Government to examine the cross sector benefits of transport 

interventions  to create a clear understanding of costs and benefits 
across the different delivery and funding agents. 

   
ASK 5 Examine clearer guidelines on locational choice at both home and 

destination. 
 
3.2  Proposal Two - Improving the capacity and connectivity of the LCR 

network. 
 

Synopsis – The geographic location of the LCR means that connectivity to the 
regional and national networks is critical.  Its importance as a major port and 
centre of an extensive logistics sector reinforces this importance. The LCR have 
agreed to build on this strength in developing ‘Superport’ as one of its 
transformational programmes.  This is seen as a potential key area in the future 
economic recovery of the LCR post recession. DaSTS has confirmed this by its 
recent upgrading of port access to national/international status. Linking between 
Proposal 1 and Proposal 3 is critical and there are concerns about capacity 
constraints on the local rail network. 

 
Summary - Government Departments and its agencies agree to work with the 
LCR Transport Partnership to examine and develop improved national, regional 
and local connectivity, addressing network capacity issues.  
 
ASK 6 Extend local rail franchising to cover the Liverpool City Region area. 
 
ASK 7 Implement Full Local Decision Making in Control Period 5 (2014-
2019) 
The City Region recognises that Network Rail would have to agree to Full Local    
Decision Making (FLDM), but our specific ask of Government is for the DfT to 
take a   

Page 14



more active stance in pressing Network Rail to work with the City Region to 
develop   
workable proposals to allow FLDM to be introduced in Control Period 5. 
 
ASK 8 Full policy and financial commitment to, and delivery of, the 

Liverpool City      
     Centre  Stations (Central and James Street) Solutions in Control 

Period 5    
      (2014-2019). 
 
 
ASK 9 Optimising the management of the strategic national and local 

highway           network through a package of measures including, 
enhanced infrastructure  

           and integration of national and LCR highway network Variable 
Message             
           Signing.  
 
ASK 10 Support the newly designated national port access route by 

financially  
supporting the development and delivery of a study to consider 

strategic, all              
          mode,  access to the Port of Liverpool, as a crucial component in 
achieving   

improved gateway access to the internationally designated Port of 
Liverpool, whilst minimising the environmental impact on the local 
community. 

 
   (This forms part of the transformational Superport project). 
 
 
3.3  Proposal Three - Low Carbon Transport Demonstration City - Reducing 

emissions and addressing climate change 
 

Synopsis – Supporting national economic competitiveness and growth whilst 
reducing transport’s carbon dioxide emissions and tackling climate change is 
identified in DaSTS as the single greatest challenge facing transport. The LCR 
Transport Partnership is committed to meeting these twin goals and the 
requirements of the Climate Change Act, and supporting the LCR 
transformational programme around a low carbon economy. The preferred 
outcome, as detailed in DaSTS, the Climate Change Act and the LCR low 
carbon economy vision is clear, but developing the options and most cost-
effective solutions is the next stage. 
 
Summary - DfT and its agencies agree to work with and fund the LCR Transport 
Partnership to examine and develop the options that will deliver the DaSTS 
challenges of supporting economic growth  and tackling climate change.  
 
ASK 11 Developing the role of Smarter Choices 
 
ASK 12 Support the City Region develop new technologies, products and 

services    to support a low carbon transport city 
 

Page 15



ASK 13 To work with the LCR to examine how transport’s air quality and 
green house gas emissions can be better addressed and managed. 

 
ASK 14 Work with the LCR Freight Quality Partnership to promote further 

the opportunities for best practice in balancing the needs of freight 
and communities and examine priority areas for consideration. We 
will also look to how to incentivise behaviour change and carbon 
reduction in the freight sector. This is clearly linked as well to Ask 
9 and Access to the Port study. 

 

 
 

Page 16



REPORT TO: Children and Young People Policy and 
Performance Board 

  
DATE: 4th June 2009 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Children and Young People  
 
SUBJECT: The relationship between the Children and Young 

People Policy and Performance Board and the 
Dioceses of Chester and Liverpool  

   
WARDS: Boroughwide 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To enable a representative from the Dioceses of Chester and Liverpool 

to be appointed to the Children and Young People’s Policy and 
Performance Board. 

 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That  
 

(1) the Executive Board and Full Council be requested to agree 
the appointment of two Dioceses representatives for Chester 
and Liverpool, as voting co-optees on the Policy and 
Performance Board for a period of four years, commencing 
from the date approval is given.   

  
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

 

• Under a Direction issued by the Secretary of State authorities must 
appoint diocesan representatives to Scrutiny Committees under s499 
Education Act 1996 and DfEE Circular 19/99 all as amended.  These 
representatives will have voting rights in relation to any decision 
relating to: - schools maintained by the LA, pupils who attend schools 
maintained by the LA or are educated by the LA in some way but not 
the other business of the Committee. This is to enable denominations 
to have a direct input to policies on education provision for pupils of 
school age 

 

• The Dioceses of Chester and Liverpool are therefore entitled to 
nominate representatives to sit on the Children and Young People’s 
Policy and Performance Board 

 

• At present this position is vacant however a name for this position has 
been submitted, Joyce Dippnall 

 

Agenda Item 4aPage 17



• Operating as an independent representative the views of the Dioceses 
will be expressed  
 
 

 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The Dioceses of Chester and Liverpool fulfil their right to a 

representative on the Children and Young People Policy and 
Performance Board 

 
4.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 None applicable. 
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
 Children and Young People in Halton 
 
6.1 Establishing a formal relationship between the Dioceses and Children 

and Young People PPB will strengthen the Council’s ability to monitor 
and review progress on priorities. 

 
 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
 
6.2  None applicable. 
 
 A Healthy Halton 
 
6.3  . None applicable 
 
 A Safer Halton 
 
6.4  None applicable. 
 
 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 
6.5 None applicable. 
 
6.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1  Failure to respond appropriately to requests for information and 

referrals would result in the CYP PPB contravening current legislation. 
 
7.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1  The procedures and processes described in this report will enable a 

much broader range of people to contribute and influence scrutiny and 
commissioning decisions. 

 

Page 18



8.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 
9.1 There are no background papers under the meaning of the Act. 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



 
REPORT TO:  Executive Board  
 
DATE: 4th June 2009   
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director – Children and Young 

People 
 
SUBJECT: Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) 
 
WARDS: Borough Wide  
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To provide Executive Board with a brief summary of the information and 

requirements as contained in the Children and Young People’s Plan Guidance 
and present Halton’s Children and Young People Plan (CYPP). 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That 
 

(1)  the information contained in this report is noted; and 
 

(2) the Executive Board endorse the CYPP to be approved by Full 
Council 

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

National guidance 
 
3.1 In February 2009 DCSF published guidance to assist areas in compiling the 

CYPP. The Plan must be a document of strategic intent, which sets the context 
of children and young people living their lives within safe, prosperous 
communities where parents are enabled to work. Therefore establishing 
effective links between CYPP and the Sustainable Communities Strategy has 
been a key requirement for this plan.  

 
3.2 The guidance is concise but expects each plan to provide a number of key 

elements and statements. In addition the plan must address how local areas 
will improve the outcomes for children and young people with specific reference 
to children and young people, there are also a number of additional 
requirements that need explanation within each plan.  

 
3.3 The required elements for local plans fundamentally ask a range of key 

questions.  These include:  
 

“What are the key improvements needed in Halton and what actions will 
enable this?” 

 
“What will Halton do to ensure the effective implementation of a 
Children’s Trust?” 

  
  

Agenda Item 4bPage 20



 
The CYPP has to present Halton’s view on how the partnership is improving 
outcomes within a joined up approach including: 

 
� Inter agency governance, leadership and whole system change 
� Integrated strategic planning and commissioning 
� Integrated processes fostering professional understanding between    

services  
� Integrated front line delivery. 

 
“What will Halton do to ensure we take heed of legislation to promote 
well-being and protect children, and how are we keeping to the 
philosophy of early and effective prevention?” 

 
This takes account of: 

 
� Integration of local services provided by the local authority and it’s 

relevant partners to improve the well being of children and young 
people 

� Arrangements made by the local authority to safeguard and promote 
the welfare of children 

� Arrangements for early intervention and preventative action 
 

“How will we best utilise our resource, and then when prioritised how will 
we manage improvement in performance?” 
 
and specifically asks: 

 
� How the plan relates to the authority’s performance management and 

review of services arrangements.  
� How the local authority’s resources will contribute to the improvements 

in outcomes. This will include commissioning arrangements and how 
resources and planning cycles are aligned to improve service 
development and delivery. 

 
Halton Children and Young People’s Plan 
 

3.4 The structure and content of Halton’s plan takes account of these specific 
requirements mentioned above and the attached document is a near complete 
version. 

 
3.5 The CYPP is not a detailed operational plan, but is expected to set the context 

and framework within which the Children’s Trust will plan and coordinate the 
effective commissioning and delivery of services that will meet the needs of 
children and young people in the borough and improve outcomes.  

 
3.6 As such we have endeavoured to make sure the CYPP demonstrates an 

alignment with other strategic planning bodies in addition to establishing itself 
as a key element within the Sustainable Communities Strategy. Therefore a key 
theme of this plan has been demonstrating a ‘wider’ ownership where this 
document is seen as an essential and integral part of local strategic plans.  

 

Page 21



3.8 The CYPP must also demonstrate clear links between a comprehensive needs 
analysis and how this analysis informs commissioning arrangements. To this 
end we have undertaken wide-ranging consultations with all relevant partners, 
children, young people and their families, we have also utilised existing 
consultation information in addition to the intelligence we have available across 
the borough and across this partnership, as part of our comprehensive needs 
analysis. Throughout the plan we have actively sought to show how this 
analysis has been used when targeting our resources effectively.   

  
3.9 Through this activity we have identified 3 main ambitions we want to achieve for 

children and young people in Halton. 
 
 These being: 
 

• Every young person is successful when they leave school. 
• Children and young people do well whatever their needs and wherever 

they live. 
• Children and young people are physically, emotionally and sexually 

healthy. 
 
3.10 In response to our responsibilities within the Children Act 2004 and the recent 

Laming Recommendations we have also ensured safeguarding maintains its high 
profile in Halton. We have made sure this continues to be a significant priority for 
all partners across professional and organisational backgrounds by identifying a 
fourth ambition within this plan. Therefore we have a fourth priority, this being 

 
• Children and Young People will feel safe at home, in school and in 

their communities. 
 
 

Local developments 
 
3.11 The Children’s Trust Executive Group endorsed the new plan being from April 

2009 to March 2011. Furthermore the PCT committed to using the CYPP as 
their ‘Commissioning Action Plan’ for health issues in the borough.  

 
3.12 The plan has utilised the Outcomes Based Accountability approach to 

demonstrate direction of travel and plans for the future. By using this approach 
in the plan we have been able to evidence how Halton is a child-focussed 
authority, which bases its decisions on effective consultation and participation 
with stakeholders and children and young people in addition to evidence of 
what works. 

 
3.13 A multi agency core team has met weekly to keep to timescales and to focus on 

tasks. Members of staff have supported the core team in their work across 
partner agencies that have offered comment and feedback when regular drafts 
of the plan have been distributed. 

 
 
3.14 The document accompanying this report is the design of the final plan. The 

content is based on what we know about Halton and what we know we need to 
do to improve outcomes for children and young people. It meets the 

Page 22



requirements as set out in the CYPP guidance and illustrates our commitment 
to listening to families and children. 

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 We have had much support across Council and Partners in developing this 

plan. It is therefore important we maintain the momentum and drive forward the 
commitments we have made through this plan to work better together in order 
to improve outcomes. 

 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 It is now necessary to work closely with young people to produce a Young 

Persons version of the plan. Youth Cabinet have been approached to assist 
where they can. 

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton 
 

This plan is the key overarching strategy document in Halton and is intrinsic to 
improving outcomes for children and young people. 

 
6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
 

The Children’s Trust partnership is committed to the employment, learning and 
skills agenda in Halton.  This plan reflects that commitment in a range of ways 
and by setting a priority of ‘every young person is successful when they leave 
school’, linked to a number of important indicators of success it is firmly 
embedding this agenda. 

 
6.3 A Healthy Halton 
 
 The aspiration of a healthy Halton is writ large throughout the plan.  The PCT 

commitment to using the plan as it’s key commissioning document coupled with 
a discrete health priority agreed by the Children’s Trust will concentrate efforts 
on making a real difference in health outcomes.   

 
6.4 A Safer Halton 
 

The plan dovetails neatly with the Safer Halton agenda as a number of key 
themes are jointly owned.  The ‘prevent and deter’ philosophy is vital to improve 
outcome and the plan has within it a number of key indicators to assist with this.   

 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 

Links with Urban Renewal are cemented with the discussions, which have 
taken place regarding Halton’s developing Core Strategy.   
 

 
 
 

Page 23



7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 The plan must be published by the first week in June to comply with statutory 

guidance. We have made every effort to make sure the plan complies with 
statutory guidance and our ambitions for the future. We have also made every 
effort that the CYPP feeds into the Sustainable Communities Strategy. It is 
therefore anticipated the risks associated with the development and production 
of this plan are minimal. 

 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1 A multi agency group is now completing an Equality Impact Assessment and 

any amendments required as a result of this process with be carried out. 
 
9.0 REASON (S) FOR DECISION 
 
9.1 It is a statutory requirement that Halton Borough Council produces and 

publishes a Children and Young People’s Plan 
 
10.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
 
10.1  None 
 
11.0 IMPLEMENTATION DATE 
 
11.1 June 2009 
 
 
12.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Document 
 
CYPP Guidance 2009 

Place of Inspection 
 
Grosvenor House 

Contact Officer 
 
Tony Crane 

Page 24



 1 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
HALTON  

 
 

Children and Young 
People’s Plan 

 
 

April 2009 – March 2011 
 
 

Version XVI –26th May 2009 
 

Page 25



 2 

Foreword 
Russell Jones 
MYP – Halton 

This is an exciting time to live in Halton, as young people are finding their voice and service providers 
are beginning to listen. We’re entering a new era of youth provision; we’re entering into a relationship 
of mutual respect and co-operation between adults and young people. In the past, young people 
would not have been consulted with about plans but times have changed in Halton and young people 
are being listened to. Services which we, as young people, use must suit the needs of young people 
and that is why our services constantly need to adapt, hopefully this plan will support young people 
and allow providers to deliver dynamic services. The work of Halton Youth Cabinet has contributed a 
lot to young peoples lives, making it possible for young people to have a voice and to be listened to 
about things that affect them, recently for example youth cabinet was involved in looking at Sexual 
Health services provision. This allowed young people to have their opinions listened to and to have 
their concerns taken seriously. 

 

 Tom McInerney 
Chair Children’s Trust Board 

On behalf of Halton’s Children’s Trust I am pleased to present Halton’s Children and Young People’s 
Plan.  
 
This plan is for all our children and young people in Halton, and importantly it focuses our thoughts 
and actions in areas where the Children’s Trust believes we need to accelerate progress.  This does 
not mean that those areas and services not directly identified in this plan are not equally important, on 
the contrary, in these areas we expect it to be ‘business as usual’ in continuing to improve outcomes in 
Halton. 
 
We have made great progress recently, but we still have much to do and this plan will set out our 
ambitions for our children and young people. 
 
There may be some people who are new to the concept of a Children’s Trust.  The idea, generated 
from central government, has within it a range of key components.  However when I am asked what 
our Children’s Trust is, my response is simple. The Children’s Trust in Halton will become the most 
effective and efficient partnership it can possibly be.  As a partnership and as a council we are very 
clear that we do this with one aim, to ensure that all children and young people reach their full 
potential. 

 

 

P
a

g
e
 2

6



 3 

Gerald Meehan 
Strategic Director C&YP and  

Co-chair Children’s Trust Executive Group 
 

As Strategic Director for Children & Young People in Halton, I am personally accountable for the 
successful implementation of the Children and Young People Plan.  Its contents reflect both the 
significant progress we have made to date; along with the areas we must improve further.  It is 
optimistic, but challenging.  
 
The Children and Young People Plan comes at a time when we are moving into a new phase of 
planning and delivery of Children’s Services with our partners.  We need to accelerate that progress 
by building on the strong foundations achieved in previous years.  This means working as one 
‘Organisation’ to deliver the Children and Young People’s Plan intended outcomes. Virtual as that 
organisation may be, its impact must be real, substantial and enduring.  
 
Our focus is about improving outcomes for children, young people and their families.  We have 
therefore developed and designed it with them; and is yet another example of how we can work 
together to common purpose.  
 
The partnership we have with the people we serve and the many services that support them is an 
inclusive one. I therefore have confidence that together we will meet the challenges the Children and 
Young People’s Plan sets out for us.  

 

 

Cleo Pollard 
Parent/Carer Representative on Children’s Trust Board 

 
This plan sets out the priorities for children and young people in Halton, and how the Children's Trust 
Board will make sure that our families get the help and support that they need in order to do well.   
 
Parents, carers and young people can positively contribute to this through involvement with the 
Children's Trust via the Parent Carer Forum and the Youth Cabinet.  In this way, our voices can be 
heard and we can help shape future services so that they are meaningful and effective. 

 

 

 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

7



 4 

 

 
 

Our Vision for Children and Young People in Halton 
 
We all want Halton to be a place of opportunity for everyone who lives here and a place where 
people are proud to live and see a promising future for themselves and their families.  
 
We also know that Halton has inherited more than its fair share of challenges, which has 
sometimes clouded our ambitions for our children and young people.  
 
This is why, in recent years we have changed our approach and made sure we become much 
more a can do, does do borough which chases the future and ambitions for our children and 
young people, rather than focuses on the challenges and difficulties history has left behind.  
 
Halton’s Sustainable Community Strategy is the overarching plan, which describes in detail 
how this change of attitude and approach is now delivering real benefits and new opportunities for 
the people who live and work here. The Children and Young People’s Plan is an integral part of 
the Sustainable Community Strategy as it sets out in greater detail how improving outcomes for 
children and young people is everybody’s business and needs everyone to become active in 
building a borough, which has hope for our children and young people.  
 
Our Values: 
We know that, in order to make a real difference to our communities and the children and young 
people who live within them it is essential our can do does do approach is nurtured by an agreed 
set of values which have been embraced across the range of Partnership arrangements in Halton. 
This provides the foundations for making things happen for the people that live here. These are: 
 

� Working together in creating a clear vision and ambition about what we want to do for our 
children and young people and how we are going to get there. 

� Working together to create a sense of ownership in building a borough that our children and 
young people can be proud of. 

� Working together to make sure we are accountable to the community by providing services 
and support, which reflect their lives and needs. 

� Working together with integrity to make sure all children and young people in Halton receive 
and have access to the best we can offer. 

� Working together to build an inclusive borough, which values diversity and works hard to 
promote equality of access and opportunity. 

� Working together in an honest and open manner, which appreciates different opinions and 
welcomes alternative perspectives on the path to finding a way forward 

� Working together in ways that demonstrate a professional respect for everybody involved in 
making a difference to the lives of children and young people in Halton. 

 
All organisations working with children and young people in Halton are committed to these values 
Our Children’s Trust Board has also promised to maintain the highest standards by signing a 
membership agreement which outlines our partners’ roles and responsibilities as members of the 
Children’s Trust Board. This agreement has also been informed by the Nolan Principles for the 
conduct of people in public life: (Membership Agreement) 
 
 

SECTION 1 
Our vision, progress to date and what we plan to do 

next 

Page 28



 5 

Our Vision: 
Halton’s Children and Young People’s Plan is for all children and young people who live, grow and 
learn in the borough. It is inclusive of all children and young people who will have unique 
experiences of their world and their communities. It is also a plan to explain how we are going to 
achieve our vision for children and young people in Halton and which will guide the activity of the 
Children’s Trust over the coming months and years.  
 

“Halton's ambition is to build stronger, safer, thriving communities which are able to support the 
development and learning of children and young people so they grow up feeling safe, secure, 

happy, healthy and ready to be Halton’s present and become Halton's future.” 
 

 
Already we have a strong sense of what it is like to be a child or young person living in Halton 
today. We have drawn together the wealth of information we have available locally as a way to 
determine how we are going to focus our attention over the coming months and years and this will 
be explored in greater detail in the next section. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

This plan has been subject to an Equality Impact Assessment 
 
 

 

This plan is an overarching strategic document outlining our plans for the future. 
Highlighted in blue throughout are specific planning documents, which can provide more 

detailed information. These documents are available on the CD that comes with the paper copy 
of the plan. If you are reading this document online, the highlighted parts of the test act as links 

to the main planning documents. 
 

 

Page 29



 6 

Halton – The Place  
 
Halton is a small borough with a population of 119500 people, who live either side of the Mersey 
estuary in the towns of Runcorn, Widnes or one of the villages surrounding these towns. The 
Silver Jubilee Bridge links the towns, but each one has its own identity, history and sense of 
community. Of these 119,500 people only 2% of the population or 2390 people are from a 
Black/Minority/Ethnic (BME) community. 
 
Halton is quite a young borough when compared to its neighbours and other boroughs across the 
country, with 27% of Halton’s population being under 19 years of age. However, the age of our 
population is changing and over the next few years we expect the number of children under 10 to 
rise slightly, meaning that there will be more younger children in the borough. Additionally the 
range of ages of the children and young people who live in Halton varies significantly from ward to 
ward. For example there are a greater number of children who are under five living in some of the 
most deprived wards, including Windmill Hill, Riverside and Halton Lea. 
 
As the birthplace of the chemical 
industry, many of Halton’s most 
challenging problems are rooted 
in the area’s industrial past. With 
manufacturing and chemical 
sectors declining, considerable 
effort has been successfully put 
into broadening the range of 
employment opportunities 
available. 
 
Recent changes to the chemical and manufacturing industries has left a positive legacy. The 
knowledge and expertise, which has been developed over time in these industries, is now being 
used in highly specialist chemical, manufacturing and scientific and research based employers, 
which have located to Halton.  However this change to the foundation for our workforce in Halton 
has also brought with it some challenges, particularly relating to the types of jobs available to local 
people.  
 

Major efforts have also been made to bring the industry’s legacy of derelict 
and contaminated land back into productive use, to help create the right 
physical and social environment to attract new investment. Our efforts are 
paying off because today, over 40% of Halton is green space and we can 
boast 10 Green Flag award winning parks and nature reserves. The 
children and young people also talk about how they like the parks and the 
play facilities for young children that local communities are able to use. 

 
 
Additionally the investment in new Creative and Science based businesses (at Daresbury, Manor 
Park & The Heath) and Logistics (at 3MG) as well as the development of the Widnes Waterfront 
are now bringing new employment opportunities to Halton but require new skills, expertise and 
knowledge which means we need to get better at training our workforce so they are able to take 
up these opportunities. 
 

Mia aged 5 from Halton 
 
I like living here because there are lots of fun things to do. 
 
I am learning to cook lots of healthy food at cooking class with my mum. I go 
after school. When we go home my brothers and sisters eat all the food I’ve 
made.  
 
Now I am big I go to school. At school I can play with my new friends. We go 
to High School Musical theatre when we sing and dance to the music. That’s 
my favourite thing. 
 
I go to Rainbows and have lots of friends who don’t go to my school, we have 
lots of fun and make lots of things for me to take home to mum 
 

A member of our 
youth cabinet 
talked about being 
surprised at how 
green the borough 
is and how many 
trees there are. 

Page 30



 7 

Halton is a borough with individual wards identified as particular areas of multiple deprivation, 
where the families and communities within these areas are more likely to experience higher 
levels of unemployment, poorer health outcomes, lower educational attainment and access to 
poor quality housing. However our population is growing after years of decline, crime is falling, 
our children are leaving school with better qualifications, employment prospects are broadening 
and ambitious regeneration projects are changing the physical environment.  
 
Social, economic and physical regeneration are creating opportunities for all and these 
improvements to the fabric of the borough has seen Halton move away from those boroughs 
assessed as those most deprived in the country. Moreover we are seeing the wealth of the 
Borough improving overall, particularly during the last 10 years. This as illustrated by rising 
numbers of detached houses, rising car ownership and increases in professional and managerial 
households in parts of the borough. 
 
With the proposed £390 million Mersey Gateway Bridge also expected to attract an estimated 
1450 jobs and provide new opportunities for investment and regeneration, it is anticipated the 
opportunities within and for Halton will continue to grow. 
 
So what does this mean for children and young people living in Halton? 
 
For a child growing up in Halton, it is a borough of many challenges, opportunities and influences. 
Experience of each of these tends to be more significant depending on where the child lives in the 
borough, but it is a borough that is changing to make sure all children have access to the same 
opportunities and reduced exposure to those challenges which get in the way of the child or young 
person reaching their potential. Only recently we have seen our young people achieved the best 
results ever in 2008 with 71% gaining 5 A* - C GCSEs, this is 6% above the national average. 
 

For a child growing up in Halton they live 
with the knowledge that Halton is described 
as a deprived borough where over half of 
Halton’s children live in wards which are 
among the 20% most deprived wards 
nationally. Only 8% of children and young 
people live in wards, which are among the 
20% least deprived wards nationally. (Index 
of Multiple Deprivation 2007) 

 
For a child growing up in Halton there are 
many opportunities to take part in creative 
initiatives such as Halton Youth Bank, which 
has seen children and young people help 
spend £300,000 on activities them to take 
part in. Young people have also been 
heavily involved in writing the bid and 
securing money from the Government to 
help build My Place – a new and exciting 
venue for services in Widnes. 

 
For a child growing up in Halton, they are growing and developing in a borough where they are 
more likely to experience ill health as they age, or where friends and family are more likely to 

10 year old boy living in Halton   
 
There are loads of exciting things to do after school and in the 
holidays now. There was nothing to do last year. 
 
We get to choose from a long list of things that we would like 
to do during our long school holidays. There is so much 
choice we can do all of the sports that we like , like football, 
riding our bikes and skating, as well as lots of arts and crafts 
and making things like Robot Wars and making masks. 
 
Some of the clubs are at our schools but there are some at 
other schools like High School up the road. Going to the other 
schools helps get us ready for when we move up next year. 
We get to know some of the teachers who work there. 
 
We get to do things with our mum and dad so we all get to do 
things together. At Easter we are all going to learn about 
taking pictures of wildlife. This means that I can enjoy 
learning about the countryside with my mum and Dad and my 
sister. 

 

Page 31



 8 

experience long and enduring illness. Halton is a borough where life expectancy is 2 years below 
the national and regional average  
 
For a child growing up in Halton they sense adults are fearful of young people, and where 
perception of crime and anti social behaviour feed this fear – Youth Cabinet 
 
For a child growing up there are many opportunities to become part of our thriving communities.  
From volunteering through to taking up in activities across the borough that can help children and 
young people learn about bike maintenance to completing Duke of Edinburgh Awards. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



 9 

If Halton was a village of 100 children and young people; 2009 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

� 23 would be under the 
age of 4  

� 23 would be aged 5 to 9 

� 58 would be living in areas in the top 10% most deprived in England 
and Wales in terms of health and disability 

� 26 would be aged 10 to 14 

� 22 would have seen some form of domestic abuse at home 

� 21 would be obese in Year 6 
 

� 51 would have 2 or more decayed or missing teeth 
 

� 32 would be living with a single parent 

� 36 would be living in areas in the top 10% most 
deprived in terms of income 

� 1 would be affected by drug-using parents 

� 2 would be identified young 
carers, and as many as another 5 
could be hidden carers 

� 4 would have a social worker 

� 5 would have a long-term illness or disability which limits what they can do 

� 74 would be happy about life at the moment � 71 would have 5-A*-C-GCSE’s 

� 78 think the information they get about eating healthily is good enough 

� 40 would have been to a swimming pool in the last 4 weeks 

� 11 would have been to a faith or 
community group in the last 4 weeks 

� 60 think the information they get about 
sex and relationships is good enough 

� 52 would like to see better parks 
and play areas 

� 54 have given time to a charity, local voluntary 
group, neighbour, community or a developing 
country in the last year 

� 78 would have given their views about the local area 
through a questionnaire or school/youth council 

� 18 would like to get a job as soon as they 
leave school 

� 27 would be worried about being 
bullied 

22 would be at university 

100 would be full of potential with dreams, hopes and aspirations for the future  

53 would live in the 
Runcorn area 

47 would live in the Widnes area 

49 would be girls 

51 would be boys 
0.2 would have a child protection 
plan 

Page 33



 10 

Our vision for Halton in 2025 is to make sure all children and young people reach their potential; 
are seen as important members of our communities and to make sure no one is left out of 
participating in activities or taking part in opportunities.  We will also make sure that we continue to 
be aspirational and ambitious for our children and young people in Halton, and will try to make 
sure over the coming years our 2025 vision becomes reality.  
 
So if Halton was a village of 100 children and young people in 2025, we would expect to see the 
experiences, opportunities and life chances of children and young people changing significantly 
from today. We accept there is still much to do, which at this time of economic uncertainty will 
require us to be at our most creative and innovative if we are to achieve our goals. But we do 
believe that by setting ourselves high ambitions it will inspire us to strive to make every effort to 
achieve them.  
 
This plan therefore is aspirational, it is ambitious and it is about and for the children and young 
people of Halton. 
 

So if Halton was a village of 100 children in 2025, this is what they could 
expect to see…….. 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

100 would be full of potential with dreams, hopes and aspirations for the future  

People would tell young 
people and children what 
they can do to help and not 
what agency they work for 

Because we will work better together we will 
not refer to agencies, or teams, instead we 
will talk about how we are going to support 
families and children. This will make sure 
children, young people and their families get 
the right help at the right time. 
 

Safeguarding will be the foundation 
as well as soul of all services and 
supports in Halton so children and 
young people feel safe in their 
homes, communities and in school 
 

Economic regeneration will lead to 
increased opportunity and employment 
for young people when they leave 
school, college or university so children 
and young people have options and 
choices that allow them to reach their 
potential and achieve their ambitions. 
 
 

There will be a focus on provision for more 
vulnerable groups so families will have 
increased flexibility to make choices that can 
best meet the needs of their children. 
 

We will have eradicated child poverty, 
which would mean none of our children 
and young people will grow and live in 
areas described as deprived. 
 

There will be different expectations as 
communities are encouraged to make 
choices, enabling and empowering 
families to have a real say about what we 
do and how we do it. This means more 
children, young people and their families 
and communities will be more active in 
making decisions and working to build a 
more prosperous borough.  

No child or young person would 
be seriously injured or killed on 
our roads 
 

All children in Halton have the best start in 
life, which promotes and protects their 
physical and mental health and emotional 
well being both now and in their future.  

Page 34



 11 

Getting To Know Our Borough better 
 

Views of parents and carers, children and young people and the professionals working with them 
have been gathered to inform this plan. They have been collected in a number of ways: 
 
• From consultation exercises and surveys that have been carried out over the past two years, 

involving children, young people, their families and practitioners working with them. 
• From the 6 public consultation sessions held in March 2009  
• From an internet survey carried out in primary schools  
• From other consultation activities carried out with specific groups, including the “Parents 

Matter Too” event  
• From views sent in by parents and young people in response to the consultation leaflet 
 

Using all of the information from consultations, we have identified some strong themes, which will 
be listened to as we develop and deliver supports and services across the borough. (Details of 
consultations via this link or on CD Rom available with hard copies.) 
 

Consultation feedback from young people indicated that 
sometimes they feel as if they are treated like ‘second-
class citizens’. We need to show a positive attitude 
towards children and young people, believing in them, 
celebrating their achievements whatever their ability 
and valuing their contribution to our community.  

 
We need to promote good emotional health for 
children and young people, helping them to be 
confident and have good self-esteem. This will help 
them to reach their potential and become confident 
and happy adults.  
 
 
 
 
 
We need to have good quality services across the 
Borough, such as health services, schools and colleges 
and services offering extra support to families. They need 
to be easy to access and available at times, which are best 
for children, young people and their families. We also need 
to make sure that families and children know what is 
available in their area. 

Young people need more things to do and places to go, 
with positive leisure activities that are affordable and 
accessible to all. They also want to feel safe when they 
are there and have adults around who are able to 
supervise and act if necessary. 

 
We need to make sure that parents, children and young people who 
need extra support are able to get the right help at the right time. We 
need to make sure that help is available to those groups of children 
and young people who tend to do less well than others.  

‘Adults judge all young people 
before knowing them, and are 
always saying bad things about 
youth – Try to understand what we 
like, listen to us, be more involved, 
be more understanding’ 

’I worked really hard to get a D in my 
GCSEs, but because it wasn’t A*-C I 
feel like I’ve failed’ 

There is too much pressure on children nowadays with ‘targets’ for 
everything – each child should be viewed as individual, not peg-holed’ 
 

’ ‘Clinics and doctors don’t 
have enough young people’s 
services’ 

‘We need more activities, sports, 
different sports on different nights, 
new opportunities and to be more 
involved in community decisions’ 

‘Poverty means not 
having the chances 
that everybody 
around has’ 

Page 35



 12 

 
We need to make sure that children and young people are 
settled into learning pathways from an early age so they develop 
life skills and are ready for employment. This will help to raise 
their aspirations and enable them to achieve them. There needs 
to be closer working with potential employers, and we need to 
value vocational and practical skills as well as academic 
achievements.  

 
We need to make sure that transport is available 
so that all children and young people and their 
families can get to where they need to go.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
There is also a range of further information available to us as we attempt to ensure we identify the 
needs of our children and young people and families. For instance external scrutiny provides us 
with an objective qualitative assessment of our services and identifies good practice and areas for 
development.   
 

Halton was the subject of a Joint Area Review (JAR) 
during March and April 2008.  The Joint Area Review 
commended us across the range of services and 
supports we offer children and young people across 
the borough. The Joint Area Review offered much 
praise to our safeguarding arrangements. Assessed 
as outstanding the inspectors commented that in 
Halton safeguarding is seen as everybody’s business. 
In Halton we are very proud of this assessment as it 
demonstrates our commitment to embedding 
safeguarding practice and therefore helping children 
and young people feel safe. This assessment also 
places us at the forefront of effective safeguarding 
practice, nationally and regionally. We are one of only 
a handful nationally that was assessed as outstanding 
for safeguarding, and the only authority within the 
North West. We are proud of our achievements so far 
and will work hard to avoid becoming complacent by 
continuing to build on these strong foundations in 
order to continue to embed the message that 
safeguarding is everybody’s business 
 

The Joint Area Review also observed that there is a strong commitment at every level and across 
every agency to make a difference. This commitment then promotes the very strong joint working 
across professionals and agencies in making a difference to children and young people. 
 

‘Work experience gives 
us the chance to interact 
with adults, get to know 
what real life is like and 
start being accepted as 
an adult’ 

‘Buses should have clamps for the wheel 
chairs to be secure. At the moment we can 
get on them but can’t use them as they are 
unsafe’ 

Transport for young people needs improving; 
better links in the evening so we can travel 
safely, and help with costs would be good 
 

Hannah is 13 and has been involved 
with the Positive Futures Programme for 
over a year. Positive Futures is about 
enabling young people to become active 
volunteers in their communities. As a 
result of offering over 75 hours to 
volunteering Hannah was nominated for 
a Heart of Gold Award.  The nomination 
was made in response to Hannah’s 
willingness to help out and support both 
colleagues and other young people in 
their communities.  
The important work of all young people 
who assist in these programmes were all 
commended because it is recognised 
that with genuine, honest and caring 
young people, like Hannah other young 
people are encouraged to take part in 
positive activities  
 

Page 36



 13 

The combination of strong engagement from children and young people, a vibrant and committed 
voluntary and community sector with clear priority setting to improve outcomes is removing 
barriers to achievement locally. 
 
The Joint Area Review was in many ways positive, although we are keen to continue to progress 
and improve our services, both in response to their observations but also in response to 
consultations and our own assessment of progress to date. Therefore an Improvement Plan was 
developed to tackle the areas for development identified by the inspection. These were: 
 

� Increase the number of young people in education, employment and training  
� Increase numbers of Care Leavers in Education, Employment and Training  
� Improve breastfeeding and obesity outcomes 
� Increase permanent accommodation for Care Leavers 
� Ensure children and young people with LDD have a good quality and reviewed transition 

plan  
� Improve quality and consistency of annual reviews for children and young people with LDD 
� Implement the detail of integrated youth support and development arrangements 
� Improve and co-ordinate systems to monitor and evaluate health outcomes 

 
To support us making a difference to each of these 
elements it is important we have the best intelligence 
and information available to base our decisions and 
programmes of development. This is in part achieved 
through our Joint Strategic Needs Assessment. 
 
The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 
pulled together a wide range of information about the 
current and future health and well-being needs of 
Halton’s population.  The findings of the JSNA have 
been used to underpin the health related elements of 
our needs analysis with the key areas for Children’s 
Services being; 
 

� High rates of infant mortality 
� High rates of teenage pregnancy 
� Obesity rate  
� Low rates of breastfeeding  
� Poor dental health 

 
A Locality Profile has been developed to help us target services, which are needed within specific 
areas of the borough.  The profile gives a picture of what people need in each of the wards in 
Halton.  and has been linked to schools to enable them to have an understanding of need within the 
communities they serve. The Locality Profile will be particularly useful in helping to reduce 
geographical inequalities in a range of outcomes (health, education and so on) across the borough.   

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
To find the documents we refer to, and a range of other information in this section, use the CD 

that comes with this plan or go to our website at www……….. 

We also welcome external scrutiny to 
specific areas of our work as a means of 
making sure we are doing everything we can 
to provide the best services, support and 
care available to all children and young 
people in Halton.  
For example the National Autistic Society 
were asked to carry out a review of services 
and support provided to children and adults 
with an Autistic Spectrum Disorder. The 
review focussed on making sure all 
resources were being used effectively in 
responding to the needs identified in the 
borough. The conclusions of the report 
offered many opportunities for us to consider 
as we continue to work hard to develop 
services, which meet the needs of all 
children and young people in Halton.   
National Autistic Review of ASD Services 
in Halton 

Page 37



 14 

What progress have we made? 
 
Halton has made much progress in recent years.  We said in our first plan that we would prioritise 
a number of areas across all 5 aims of the Government’s ‘Every Child Matters’ Outcomes, and the 
following give a sense of our achievements to date. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



 15 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Halton 44% 49% 53% 62% 71%

National 54% 57% 59% 62% 65%

Stats Neig 45% 51% 54% 59% 67%

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Halton celebrates GCSE success 
THE OUTCOME 

 

71% of young people achieved 5 or more A*-C GCSE grades in 2008 - this means a 27% 

rise since 2004 compared to an 11% rise across the country. Halton is now performing at 

6% above the national average for 5 or more A*-C GCSE grades 

 

THE STORY BEHIND THE CURVE 

 

OVERVIEW 
For the last 2 years, Halton has been in the top 5 most improved authorities in the country for children achieving 
5 or more GCSEs A*-C.  
 
In 2007, Halton was ranked number 1, with an improvement of 9% from 2006. Halton is now performing better 
than similar areas across the country. 
 

WHAT HAS MADE THE DIFFERENCE 
Schools, their teaching staff and the young people themselves all working together has been the most 
significant factor in these improvements to the attainment rates in Halton in the last 4 years. Their hard work and 
commitment has paid off. This has been supported by increasingly strong partnerships between secondary 
schools and the local authority  
 
We have also seen schools working more closely together in sharing information and best practice to support 
their goals and ambitions for their pupils. 
 
Both the positive engagement by schools with the Secondary National Strategy and the effective, targeted and 
bespoke support from Local Authority School Improvement Professionals challenging and encouraging practice 
and management within the schools is making a real difference to the outcomes for young people in our schools 
 
All of this activity we have undertaken in recent years is further supported by regular monitoring and review of 
progress towards agreed outcomes with training, advice and guidance available to support teachers and heads 
in their work with young people. 

 

Percentage of young people in Halton achieving five or more 
A* to C grades at GCSE, compared to young people 
nationally and in neighbouring boroughs 2004 - 2008 

Page 39



 16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Safeguarding in Halton is outstanding 

OVERVIEW 
Since the inception of Halton Safeguarding Children Board in 2006 we have worked hard to build an acceptance 
across agencies and communities of the importance of the message that safeguarding is everybody’s business. 
 
The quality and range of responsive locally based services available for families which are able to intervene early 
is excellent and we have consistent and prioritised allocation of social workers for children subject to child 
protection plans and children in the care of the local authority. 
 
Halton has developed a Levels of Need Framework to provide clarity to parents, carers and professionals about 
the routes into services and support. 

 
WHAT HAS MADE THE DIFFERENCE  

Halton Safeguarding Children Board provides very effective strategic leadership, which has developed and 
maintained a strong framework of scrutiny, quality assurance and training which is respected and supported by 
both statutory and third sector agencies. 
 
We have established a multi agency safeguarding unit as a way of making effective use of knowledge and 
expertise across the Children’s Trust and continue to build strong relationships between Children’s Trust and 
Halton Safeguarding Children Board to ensure robust challenge and commitment to improvement is maintained 
across the area. 
 
We recognise that these arrangements could not be achieved without the strong engagement across services 
and communities in supporting and delivering our hopes and aims for children and young people. Certainly the 
success in this area has been dependent on an experienced, committed, skilled and knowledgeable team of 
staff, carers and volunteers across every setting for  children and young people. These are our most valuable 
asset in continuing to embed the message in Halton that safeguarding is everybody’s business and will continue 
to be the most significant factor as we continue to build on our successes to date..  
 

Source: Ofsted – July 2008 

SAFEGUARDING CASE STUDY 
Common Assessment Framework (CAF) IN ACTION 

(CAF is a process for identifying low level support needs for children and families) 
 

Euan, was at risk from self-harm and thoughts about suicide because he was worried and anxious 
about the likely impact of family breakdown upon himself and his two siblings. Through a third sector 
organisation talking to Euan, it transpired that there were a number of issues for the family relating 
to debt, gambling and addiction, domestic violence and conflict.  

 
His parents consented to a CAF being carried out which identified the family would benefit from a 
range of support from five service providers, including Youth Offending Team, YISP, Action for 
Children and Arch Initiatives. Euan also accessed counselling and became involved in some group 
work, which allowed him to express his worries and concerns about his family and their future.  
 
This multi agency approach helped Euan to get back into school where he was identified as a gifted 
and talented pupil and a benefactor funded his two week summer school placement at a prestigious 
university. He is now on track for university and his family are still together. 
 
This family had a range of complex needs and, without involvement and support from a range of 
service providers; Euan would not have achieved his full potential. He is happy that his family are 
still together and more able to focus on their children’s needs. 

 

Page 40



 17 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fewer young people enter the Youth Justice System 

THE OUTCOME 

 

 
 

 

THE STORY BEHIND THE CURVE 

 

OVERVIEW 
Young people who enter the Youth Justice System tend to have poorer life chances than their peers. Issues such 
as education, substance misuse, mental health issues, parenting are all frequently identified as contributory 
factors, which can cause young people to break the law. It is therefore important to ensure that young people who 
offend in a minor way can be dealt early to avoid their offending behaviour escalating. 

 
WHAT HAS MADE THE DIFFERENCE 
The reason for the decline in the number of young people entering the Criminal Justice System is attributable to 
the many services and support mechanisms coming together, rather than any individual projects working in 
isolation. The Strategic Director for Children’s Services oversees the activity of the Youth Justice Service in Halton 
and chairs the local Youth Justice Board. The Board has worked hard to interrogate performance and target 
resources. Through this mechanism we ensure we remain committed to achieving sustained improvements to 
supporting the non criminalization of children and young people in Halton by maintaining pressure on performance 
and improving outcomes.  
 
The introduction of the Youth Inclusion Support Panel, which seeks to support children and young people from the 
age of 8 and address risk factors for offending, has been extremely successful since it was launched in January 
2007. Also the principles of restorative justice by Cheshire Constabulary along with the amendment of national 
policing targets has encouraged a more victim centered outcome driven local approach. 
 
The development of more positive activities for young people and the improvements in educational attendance 
and outcomes are all contributing to the reduction in youth crime and youth nuisance being experienced in the 
Borough.  

 

Halton / National comparison percentage of 

First Time Entrants to the Youth Justice System

2005 - 2007

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

Halton 2.7% 2.5% 2.0%

National 2.0% 2.0% 1.8%

2005 2006 2007

Page 41



 18 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Picture: Member of Youth Parliament, Members of Youth Cabinet and Council Members from Executive Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Halton's Youth finds its voice 

THE OUTCOME 

 

OVERVIEW 
Each area in the borough has an area youth forum and each area youth forum elects young person as their representative 
on the Youth Cabinet. This task takes place every November through a series of Voice events and conferences, and is 
supported by both the Youth Service and Connexions 
 

The Youth Cabinet is a young people’s forum, run by young people, for young people, with 12 members. The job of the 
representatives is to increase their knowledge of young people’s needs, and represent the views of young people in Halton 
at both a local and national level.  
 

The 12 members of the Youth Cabinet then took part in leadership campaign to become the Member of Youth Parliament 
and Deputy Member of Youth Parliament. The latest election took place in January 2009.  4864 young people in Halton 
voted in Russell Jones as the Member of Youth Parliament and Emily Davidson as Deputy MYP for the Borough during the 
Halton UKYP Election. In total nearly 20000 votes have been cast by young people in the elections in the last 3 years 
 

The MYP and DYP are supported by the Youth Cabinet. The main aim of Halton’s Youth Cabinet and Members of Youth 
Parliament is to improve the lives of young people in Halton. 
 

YouthBank has also been highly influential with young people receiving a budget with which to design and deliver services 
for young people across the borough. To date they have spent £300,000 on activities and opportunities identified as 
important to local children and young people. 
 

WHAT HAS MADE THE DIFFERENCE 
Youth Cabinet have achieved many successes from year to year from advocating on behalf of Halton young people via peer 
research consultations to enabling the MYP and DMYP to contribute and participate in the borough’s decision-making 
bodies. Other key successes include; 

• Improving Places to Go and Things to Do for Young People across the borough.  

• Continuation of representation of Halton Young People at high profile national and regional events i.e. Circles of 
Influence Conference and both National and Regional UKYP sittings.  

• Young People Focused campaigns including ‘Buzz Off’ a national campaign to eradicate Mosquito devices situated 
across the borough.  

• Consistently working towards ensuring young people are consulted to improve services and make changes i.e. Young 
Peoples Sexual Health Services, Positive Images of Young People in the Media, Anti-Bullying Campaign, Environment  
issues, Transport, Safety and Equality and Diversity.  

• Encouraged volunteering for community cohesion via Youth Cabinet 

Page 42



 19 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Attendance in Schools is on the up 
THE OUTCOME 

 

Persistent Absence in Halton Secondary Schools has fallen by 4.3% since 2006 - whereas 

decreases in figures from across the country are about 2% 

THE STORY BEHIND THE CURVE 

 

Halton Primary / Secondary  
Attendance 

87%

89%

91%

93%

95%

2000 / 01 2001 / 02 2002 / 03 2003 / 04 2004 / 05 2005 / 06 2006 / 07 2007 / 08

Secondary

Primary

Kenzie’s Story: 
 
Kenzie attended his local high school but 
stopped going to school shortly after the 
Christmas holidays. 
 
To address this non attendance Kenzie 
received some  support through his local 
CAMHS team. A meeting was also 
arranged with Kenzie’s family, the Head of 
Year and Learning Mentor at the High 
School to find a way forward and to support 
Kenzie’s return to school.  
 
A Support Worker and Learning Mentor 
worked closely with the family over the 
coming weeks to begin to establish a 
routine for Kenzie as a way of getting him 
back to school. It started slowly by making 
sure Kenzie was up, dressed and ready for 
school to slowly re introducing him to the 
classroom, his friends and then slowly to 
his lessons. He also continued to received 
support at CAMHS. 
 
The family and Kenzie were supported at 
every stage of the plan, and the progress 
Kenzie was making was reviewed regularly 
and when the new academic year started 
in September Kenzie was back at school. 
 

OVERVIEW 
In addition to the reduction in persistent absence, the national school 
attendance figures for 2007/8 published by the Department of 
Children Schools and Families show that the improvement in school 
attendance in Halton has continued with Halton’s Secondary 
Attendance now having improved consistently over the last four years.  
Halton’s Secondary attendance now stands at 92.46% compared to 
89.79% in 2003/4.   
 
The data released 2007/8 for Primary School attendance at 
94.78% represents the best primary attendance since Halton 
became a unitary authority and is the first time that primary 
attendance in Halton has been above the average for the rest of 
England (94.74%). 
 

WHAT HAS MADE THE DIFFERENCE 
We believe that attendance figures in our secondary schools are going up 
a combination of reasons. 

� Schools with the help of the Local Authority have developed 
robust systems to detect and follow up unexplained absence in a 
systematic way using clear escalation processes 

� Schools own their attendance and are much clearer about what 
they can do to influence attendance in their school. A plan involving the 
parents is put in place with every young person who is absent over the 
persistent absence (80%) threshold  

� There is a strong working relationships between Schools and 
Local Authorities Education Welfare Service  

� Where parents continue to not support the school attendance of 
their children enforcement action is taken through the courts.  

 
 

Page 43



 20 

Our Priorities 
We are trying to adopt a new approach in realising our hopes for children, young people and 
families in Halton. For too long we have relied heavily on limited definitions of children and young 
people that taken on their own do not reflect the breadth and variety of a child or young person’s 
life or circumstance. As was noted in one of our consultations we may hit the target, but we are in 
danger of missing the point, the point being is that we must make every effort to improve 
outcomes for children and young people.  
 

To address this issue we will be using Outcomes Based 
Accountability as the method behind making a difference to 
the lives of children, young people and their families in 
Halton. 

 
The Outcomes Based Accountability approach widens our horizons in 
terms of tackling some of our more challenging issues in Halton and allows 
us the freedom and creativity to work with ambition and outcomes. We 
know certain groups within our communities can get forgotten about but 
we have made sure that this approach to improving outcomes remembers 
that additional efforts will need to be made to reach all children and young 
people. 
 

Disabled children, children in the care of the 
local authority, children and young people with 
caring responsibilities all tell us they want us to 
work with them to make sure any support or 
service we provide is what they want and need. 
They also tell us that working with them are not 
about focussing on the issue, but focussing on 
them as a child or a young person first.  

 
 
Outcomes Based Accountability demands we listen to our 
communities and makes sure that what we are told becomes 
part of our reasons and purpose for improving services, so when 
a child tells us they do not want activities to be too far away from 
their home, we listen and make every effort to keep their 
activities local to where they live and go to school. 
 

We believe that Outcomes Based Accountability recognises the value of 
all children and young people and seeks a way to achieve ambitions in a 
child focussed way. This not only agrees with the sentiment and tone of 
the many parents, carers, professionals, children and young people who 
were consulted in the preparation of this plan, it also allows us to focus on 
the particular difficulties and issues of certain groups of children and young 
people in Halton.  

 

The Children’s Trust, in response to these wide-ranging 
consultations across the borough and reflection on 
performance to date has set four specific ambitions, 

Young people told 
us they want us to 
show we believe in 
them. 

Children with 
complex needs 
told us they want 
to be accepted 

As a parent told us at a 
consultation event, you keep 
telling us what you are going 
to do, so now just get on and 
do it! 

Disabled children tell us they want to 
spend time with their friends, they want to 
take part in lots of different kinds of 
activities and they want the type of futures 
their peers have access to, so a flat they 
can live in, a job they can enjoy and 
places to go that they can enjoy with their 
friends. 

Parents and carers need better 
publicity and information about 
what support and opportunities 
are available  

Adults tell us we need to get 
better at caring and nurturing 
children and young people’s self 
esteem 

Page 44



 21 

which better define what we are trying to achieve for 
children and young people. The four ambitions are: 
 
Every Young Person is successful when they leave 
school 
 
Children and young people do well wherever they 
live and whatever their needs 
 
Children and young people are physically, 
emotionally and sexually healthy. 
 
 

We believe that each of these statements are conditions of well 
being for all children and young people that no one single 
agency can achieve on their own. Rather a coherent partnership 
approach is vital if we are to succeed in making the necessary 
difference to each of these outcomes.  
 
Moreover the benefit of identifying these priority areas allows us 
to structure our approach and developments around the needs 
of the child which will address the complexities of children and 
young people’s lives today. 
 

Safeguarding plays a significant role in each of our identified areas of work and will be a 
consistent factor as each priority is addressed but we also consider that it is essential that in order 
to continue embedding the message that safeguarding is everybody’s business we must identify a 
fourth priority area. This is  
 
Children and young people will feel safe at home, in school and in their communities. 

 
We accept that there remain important issues 
for the children and young people of Halton, 
which will be considered in addition to as well 
as part of our identified priorities.  
 
For example there are many vulnerable 
groups of children and young people in 
Halton who tell us they want to be treated as 
their peers, and this is what we are 
committed to achieving. However in certain 
aspects of their care and well being we must 
make additional efforts as a means of 
ensuring they experience the same level of 
access to the many opportunities all children 
and young people in Halton have access to. 
This is why for children in care and disabled 
children and young people we are committed 
to making good on our pledges. 

Young people told us there 
are a lot of opportunities for 
them in Halton to take up, 
but getting to these 
opportunities is really 
difficult because the bus is 
either too expensive or 
does not go where the 
activity is. 

Young people told us they need 
activities and opportunities to be 
better advertised and publicised. 
They want to know what is happening 
in their area because they will use 
these activities if they get to know 
when they are happening.   

Halton’s Pledge to Children in Care: 
The pledge is a promise, to all children in care including care 
leavers, listing what the council will provide for you in terms 
of services, support and care. So far the children and young 
people have said they think the pledge should talk about : 
� The amount of rules that govern their lives, there are more 

for them than for their friends which get in the way of them 
making friends and being like their friends 

� They want more privacy and not so many people knowing 
their business 

� When they leave care they want to be able to find a job and 
have somewhere safe, secure and permanent to live 

� Family is really important, having contact with their own 
family, and feeling part of a family by being loved, cared for 
and where they feel safe, secure and know its for as long 
as they need it. 

� They want to feel like they have time for themselves, and 
time from us as adults so they can make decisions 
together. 

 
The Launch for Halton’s Children in Care Pledge will be Oct 
2009 
 
Our commitment and intent to improving outcomes for 
children in our care can be found in 
Children in Care Strategy 
Placement Strategy 
Employment Policy for Care Leavers 

 

Page 45



 22 

 
The information that follows describes 
the progress and efforts made to date 
in addressing the specific concerns 
within each of our four ambitions. It 
also describes some of the plans and 
ideas we have to achieve our 
ambitions over the coming months and 
years. This will assist in demonstrating 
both the progress we are making to 
specific areas of the lives of children 
and young people. It will also describe 
the areas that collectively we need to 
address to ensure we continue to 
make a real difference to the lives and 
experiences of children and young 
people in Halton.  

 
 
 

This plan sets out the range of key indicators 
we feel will show we have made progress.  
However we must also demonstrate that we 
have considered the detail, which is essential 
for us to make good on our promises.  In our 
case this detail is in the range of plans and 
strategies sitting beneath the Children and 
Young People’s Plan, including the Business 
Plans for our Service Delivery Partnerships. 
 
 

 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Halton was the first authority in the North West to 
sign up to the Every Disabled Child Matters Pledge 
for Local Authorities  
� Families with disabled children to have ordinary lives 
� Disabled children to matter as much as all other 

children 
� Disabled children and their families to be fully 

included in society 
� All disabled children and their families to get the right 

services and support no matter where they live 
� Poverty amongst disabled children and their families 

to be cut by 50% by 2010 and eliminated by 2020 
� An education system that meets the needs of each 

child and enables them to reach their full potential 
� Disabled children and their families to shape the way 

that services are planned, commissioned and 
delivered. 

 

Children in Care Council  
Our Children in Care Council was established in 
2008. Since this time we have been working hard to 
encourage children and young people in our care to 
become involved in this new opportunity for them to 
have their say. So far we have had a number of 
meetings, which are attended by our Strategic 
Director Gerald Meehan and Lead Member for 
Children, Tom McInerney. We have also had some 
fun days as a way to keep children and young 
people encouraged and excited about becoming 
involved. 
The next step for our council is to arrange for 
elections to a Children in Care Committee. This will 
see children and young people in our care elect 
children and young people who will then be able to 
represent the views of all children and young people 
in our care. 
The committee is anticipated to function in the same 
way as our Youth Cabinet whereby the children and 
young people will offer their views on current 
practice, aims and strategies in addition to offering 
challenge to their corporate parents.  
The views and ideas will continue to be expressed 
to the Strategic Director and Lead Member in 
addition to being fed through to the Children in Care 
Partnership Board and Children’s Trust. 

Page 46



 23 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EVERY YOUNG PERSON IS SUCCESSFUL WHEN THEY LEAVE SCHOOL 

We want to reduce the number of young

people worried about their future

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Halton 30 49

National 30 49

2007 2008

We want to Increase the percentage of Young 

People achieving their estimtated level of 

achievement at GCSE

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Halton 55% 53% 55% 58% 64%

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

We want to Increase the percentage of Young 

People achieving Level 3 by 19

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Halton 35% 34% 34% 33%

National 46% 47% 48% 50%

2005 2006 2007 2008

We want to increase the percentage of young 

people participating in positive activities

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Halton 67.8%

National 69.5%

2008/09

Source: Tellus 

Page 47



 24 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EVERY YOUNG PERSON IS SUCCESSFUL WHEN THEY LEAVE SCHOOL 

WHAT WE PLAN TO DO IN ORDER TO IMPROVE 

 
 

 
SERVICE DELIVERY PARTNERSHIP: EVERY YOUNG PERSON IS SUCCESSFUL WHEN THEY  

LEAVE SCHOOL 
 
A Key Message from the Chair Of The SDP 
There are a number of areas we will focus on in the coming months as we make every effort to build a borough 
where every child can be assured that we will do all we can to support them in achieving their ambitions and goals. 
 
We are acutely mindful of responding to the current need caused by such a severe economic downturn.  Our 
identified key indicators capture the holistic nature of young people’s lives.  However it is clear that the more 
employability skills young people possess, both in terms of experience and achievement, the likelier they re to 
make a successful transition to adulthood.  This is particularly relevant for some of our more vulnerable groups 
 
The link to employers is crucial and one example of this is that will ensure that our Education Business Partnership 
will work with partners to improve the diversity and quality of work experience.  Also we will increase the number of 
employers actively working with all our schools in order to improve our learners’ insight into the work of work and to 
boost aspirations. 
 
We are also aware that there are a range of important accredited initiatives that young people undertake as part of 
their informal education.  These experiences both inspire and provide young people with the opportunities to learn 
important life skills which significantly improve their life chances.  We need to find a way of capturing this 
information in order to value and understand the breadth on offer. 
 
We want to increase the number of vulnerable young people achieving level 3 qualifications by the age of 19. This 
requires we tackle the barriers facing this group of young people now and by working closely with vulnerable 
children to help build the solid foundations necessary for them to reach their full potential 
 
We want to make sure we provide children and young people with a range of opportunities they can learn from. 
This means we have to provide them with the necessary advice, guidance and information to support their decision 
making and establishing more creative programmes to build their self esteem through the early years and into 
primary settings.  
 
We will also build on the successes we have made in recent years and will reflect on the specific work that has 
made a difference in order to make this practice part of our everyday business. Key mechanisms to support these 
ambitions will be BSF and the 14 to 19 agenda. 
Reaching this ambition is about making the big decisions necessary that support getting the little things right. We 
must also make sure we empower professionals to use their expertise and knowledge in working with families and 
children to build a borough of hope and ambition. Making a difference here for Halton will be about transforming 
hearts and minds.  
 
To help us achieve our goals we have identified a range of performance measures that will assist us to monitor and 
review our progress. The chosen measures illustrated here are indicators of progress that we consider reflects the 
detail of this ambition. We accept this may not offer the whole picture and this is why, as part of the action plans 
accompanying the work of Service Delivery Partnerships, there will be a more detailed range of indicators and 
actions in order to make sure we are addressing the full range of measures necessary to demonstrate we are 
making a difference to this particular ambition. 

 
 

BUILDING SCHOOLS FOR 
THE FUTURE (BSF) 
 
Building schools for the 
future will be a significant 
tool for us is making this 
happen as one of its goals 
in transforming the learning 
outcomes for children and 
young people will be to 
make sure the learning 
needs of vulnerable or 
under achieving groups are 
more effectively targeted. 
 
BSF will also allow us to 
provide space and 
resources to meet specific 
local needs and provide 
local children and young 
people access to the many 
opportunities which exist in 
their communities. 
 
BSF will promote and 
enable swift and easy 
access to specialist 
provision, provide wide 
ranging support for parents 
and carers to empower 
them to better meet the 
needs of their children and 
young people. 
 
BSF will allow us to re-
establish schools as the 
heart of their communities 
and where children and 
young people’s needs are 
met, where all children and 
young people are 
encouraged to meet their 
full potential so they are 
able to reach their potential 
and fulfil their ambitions 
 
Building Schools for the 
Future 

 

We want to increase the percentage of young 

people volunteering

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Halton 54%

National 61%

2008/09

We want to Reduce the percentage of 16-

18 year olds who are NEET

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Halton 9.1% 11.2% 11.8% 11.5% 13.4%

National 9.6% 7.7% 7.1% 6.9%

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Source: Tellus 

Page 48



 25 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE ARE PHYSICALLY, EMOTIONALLY AND 
SEXUALLY HEALTHY 

WHAT WE PLAN TO DO IN ORDER TO IMPROVE 

We want to reduce the percentage of young 

people who worry about being bullied

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

Halton 24% 25%

National 27% 27%

2007 2008

We want to reduce the percentage of young 

people who consume alcohol

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

Halton 16% 11%

National 12% 10%

2007 2008

We want to reduce Obesity amongst 

primary school age children in Year 6

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Halton 22.3% 21.4%

National 17.5% 18.3%

2006/07 2007/08

Source: Tellus 

Source: Tellus 

We want to increase the percentage of 

young people in Halton who are happy

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Halton 70%

2008

Source: Tellus 

Page 49



 26 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE ARE PHYSICALLY, EMOTIONALLY AND 
SEXUALLY HEALTHY 

SERVICE DELIVERY PARTNERSHIP: CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE ARE 
EMOTIONALLY, SEXUALLY AND PHYSICALLY HEALTHY. 
 
A Key Message from the Chair Of The SDP 
The health and well being of children and young people is essential because by making sure our 
children and young people live emotionally, physically and sexually healthy lives we provide 
them with strong foundations upon which they can build a happy and healthy adulthood. 
 
A key part of this will be bringing together representatives from across the children’s and adult’s 
workforce to make sure we are joining up our provision in supporting the health and well being 
of our children and young people. 
 
The emotional, sexual and physical health of children and young people in Halton are part of an 
overarching agenda which our Service Delivery Partnership will be able to have oversight of, in 
addition to creating a sense of collective ownership to the specific issues and challenges our 
children and young people face today such as worries about the sexual health of young people, 
use of alcohol and levels of obesity in addition to concerns about emotional health and well 
being.  
 
To help us achieve our goals we have identified a range of performance measures that will 
assist us to monitor and review our progress. The chosen measures illustrated here are 
indicators of progress that we consider reflects the detail of this ambition. We accept this may 
not offer the whole picture and this is why, as part of the action plans accompanying the work of 
Service Delivery Partnerships, there will be a more detailed range of indicators in order to make 
sure we are addressing the full range of measures necessary to demonstrate we are making a 
difference to this particular ambition. 
 
An example of some of our practice locally: 
The MEND Programme  (Mind, Exercise, Nutrition…Do it!) is a fun course for families with 
children aged 7 to 13 whose weight is above the healthy range for their age and height.. It helps 
children and families manage their weight better and lead healthier lives. 
 
With the support of their parents or carers, children learn how to improve their health, fitness 
and the way they feel about their bodies. This is a joint working initiative as Health Improvement 
Specialist – Healthy Schools, manages the overall programme  

 
Feedback so far from the children and their parents has been positive and has helped them 
make changes to their lifestyle.  

MESSAGE FROM JOHANNA 
PICKERING. HEALTH MINISTER 
YOUTH CABINET. HALTON 
 
Whenever you begin to think about 
young people's health, many adults 
would instantly think of binge 
drinking and sexual health but the c-
card scheme has increased the 
amount of young people practicing 
safe sex and both the YMCA and 
HITs have effective alcohol and drug 
tackling projects. Healthy eating is a 
major factor also as diet links to 
mental health and obesity, and again 
upcoming plans for a ministry of food 
style project is in the planning stages  
 
However the health of young people 
doesn't seem to be  improving at the 
extent that it should be. It is my belief 
that the projects to tackle these exist 
but that they are not get the publicity 
that they need to be effective to the 
numbers of young people in Halton 
and that the successful projects 
should encompass all young people 
not just those who attend school in 
the borough or those who attend 
youth provisions.  
 
This year, so many projects are 
taking place. The ministry of food is 
being planned within the next few 
months. The c-card scheme is 
increasing in numbers as more 
young people learn of it. Not to 
mention the splash programme 
which promotes physical activities 
plus many other projects in the 
planning stages and will be ready for 
this summer and hopefully will be 
continued for years to come. 

 

WHAT WE PLAN TO DO IN ORDER TO IMPROVE 

 

We want to reduce the Under 18 

conception rate

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

ra
te

s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0

Halton 43.8 55.4 48.8 70.3

National 41.6 41.3 40.6 41.7

2004 2005 2006 2007

We want to reduce the infant 

mortality rate

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

ra
te

s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0

Halton - Infant age

under 1 year

5.9 6.9 6.2 6.4 7.1

National - Infant

age under 1 year

5.4 5.2 5.1 5.0 4.9

2001 - 03 2002 - 04 2003 - 05 2004 - 06 2005 - 07

Page 50



 27 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE DO WELL WHEREVER THEY LIVE AND 
WHATEVER THEIR NEEDS 

 

We want to increase the percentage 

of vulnerable groups in Education, 

Employment & training (EET)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Halton 88.3% 88.3% 86.0%

SEN 77.1% 72.8% 67.6%

Teen M oth 17.6% 23.3% 32.6%

Care Lea. 20.0% 39.1% 40.0%

YOT 44.2% 55.1% 50.7%

2007 2008 2009

By 2011 We want to reduce the GCSE 5+A*C 

inc. English & Maths achievement gap by 25% 

between those in the worst 10% LSOA 

Nationally against the Halton average

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Halton LSOA 13.2% 33.6% 37.4%

Halton 33.3% 41.1% 49.2%

National 45.8% 46.8% 47.6%

2006 2007 2008

We want to reduce the Proportion of 

children in poverty

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

Halton 27.0%

2007/08

We want to increase the percentage of 

young people eligible for Free School Meals 

achieving Level 3 by 19

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

Halton 16% 17% 16% 19%

National 20% 21% 23% 24%

2004 2005 2006 2007

Page 51



 28 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE DO WELL WHEREVER THEY LIVE AND 
WHATEVER THEIR NEEDS 

WHAT WE PLAN TO DO IN ORDER TO IMPROVE 

 SERVICE DELIVERY PARTNERSHIP: CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE DO 
WELL WHEREVER THEY LIVE AND WHATEVER THEIR NEEDS: 
 
A Key Message from the Chair Of The SDP 
It may  well be argued that the priority of “children and young people do 
well wherever they live and whatever their needs” is the toughest nut to 
crack.  Whilst great progress has been made in general, with improving 
outcomes there are some children and young people whose lives and 
circumstances have meant they have not benefited from the general 
improvements.  It is for these children and young people that we aim to 
reduce these inequalities. 
 
There are a number of areas we will focus on in the coming months as we make 
every effort to build a borough where every child can be assured that we will do 
everything we can to make sure all children and young people have access to 
the same opportunities and activities in Halton, and that they are supported and 
encouraged in achieving their ambitions and goals whatever their needs are and 
wherever they live. 
 
For example the development of school behaviour and attendance partnerships 
will facilitate even more collaborative working between schools in order to meet 
the needs of our most vulnerable learners. 
 
In order to make a difference in this area we must work across professional and 
agency boundaries in order to bring together the agendas so we are better 
placed to tackle the significant challenges children and young people face 
today. Moreover to make a sustained difference requires we work with partners 
outside services for children and young people 
Part of our role as a SDP will be joining up our expertise and knowledge with 
colleagues working across the range of services for adults, in addition to 
working with organisation in our communities and with employers because to 
create equality of access and possibility requires we are creative and 
aspirational for our borough. 
 
 

14-19 STRATEGIC 
PARTNERSHIP 
This partnership will be essential in 
delivering on our ambition to make 
sure all children and young people 
do well wherever they live and 
whatever their needs 
 
The work, drive and commitment of 
this partnership will ensure the 
sustained participation of young 
people in education, training and 
employment through a creative 
and world class curriculum that is 
able to respond to the learning 
needs of young people and for the 
future needs of local employers. 
 
It has established strong working 
relationships across the borough to 
make sure it is responsive to the 
needs of vulnerable groups within 
our communities such as disabled 
young people and young people in 
the care of the local authority. 
 
Working in tandem with Building 
Schools for the Future, the 
Learning Skills Council and local 
partners, we anticipate the 14-19 
Partnership will achieve all its 
goals and aims by 2013  
 
14-19 Strategy 
14-19 Action Plan 

 

We want to increase the percentage of 

young people who think their area is a very 

good place to live

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Halton 65% 68%

National 74% 75%

2007 2008

.

Source: Tell Us  

Pe rson ce nte re d pla ns

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Halton

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

2009 baseline to be established 

We will increase the number of person 
centred plans completed 

Page 52



 29 

 
 

 

 
 
The purpose of Halton’s Children and Young People’s Plan is to set our clearly how we intend to 
improve outcomes for children and young people and their families. So far we have talked about 
Halton and the particular pressures and hopes children and young people have. We must now 
focus on how we are going to achieve our ambitions, bring to light the hopes and goals of our 
children and young people and discuss how we are going to tackle the issues and difficulties 
which can get in their way.   
 
This section therefore will describe how we plan to organise the services and professionals to 
improve the outcomes of children and young people locally. 
 
What is a Children’s Trust? 
The Children’s Plan set out the Government’s aim to make this country the best place in the 
world for children and young people to grow up. This means making sure that all children, 
wherever they live, whatever their background, whatever their age and whatever their needs, have 
access to the best health care we can provide; feel safe at home, in their communities and when 
they are in school; enjoy life and have fun and achieve well at school and beyond; are able to 
make a positive contribution to society; and achieve economic wellbeing.  It is the role of each 
Children’s Trust in England to turn this vision into reality.  
 
Children’s Trusts are local partnerships, which bring together the organisations responsible for 
services for children, young people and families. They come together because of their shared 
commitment to improving children’s lives.  
 
The Strategic Directors of Children’s Services and Lead Members for Children’s Services within 
each local authority lead Children’s Trusts. This is a statutory responsibility as outlined in the 
Children Act 2004. This legal duty also extends to other local agencies who are named partners 
for each Children’s Trust. These are: Strategic Health Authorities, Primary Care Trusts (PCTs), 
Police Authorities, Local Probation Boards, Youth Offending Teams, Connexions Partnerships and 
the Learning and Skills Council.  Children’s Trusts also include other important local partners like 
schools, colleges and third sector organisations, as well as other local authority services like adult 
social care and housing. 
 
The term “Children’s Trust” applies to the whole 
system of children’s services, covering the work 
of partner agencies at every level, from the 
development of the overall strategy to the 
delivery of front-line services. But Children’s 
Trusts are not separate organisations in their 
own right.  Each partner retains their own 
responsibilities, while working together to join up 
services.   
 
 
 
 

SECTION 2 
We know what we need to do – so how will the 

partnership meet the challenge  

Page 53



 30 

What are Halton’s Children’s Trust arrangements?  
 

Inter-agency governance and integrated strategy. 
 

For Halton this means we ensure that our thinking and planning (strategy) are joined up and we 
have in place a system, which brings together all organisations to provide challenge support and 
accountability (governance) to make sure we are making improvements. 
 
Our Children’s Trust brings together a number of senior representatives from a variety of 
agencies, organisations and professionals that work with children, young people and their families 
locally. Children’s Trust Members. Their purpose is to create a collective and innovative strategic 
response to meeting the needs of children locally with the explicit expectation that their decision 
making and drive will improve outcomes and make a difference to the lives of children and young 
people in Halton.  

 
The importance of building these strong and sustainable relationships across the range of 
strategic planning arrangements cannot be underestimated in our continued commitment to 
improving outcomes for children and young people. Therefore the impact and importance to us of 
this wider planning network in supporting our goals and ambitions for children and young people 
have to be considered and utilised. 
 
We have reflected on the early manifestations of our Trust Board and developed this final 
structure, (Fig 1) as we believe it is better able to address the most presenting needs of our 
communities and the children and young people who are an asset to these communities. We also 
believe this structure will drive the required actions necessary to build stronger and more tangible 
ambitions for children and young people locally.  
 
This revised structure illustrates the important links, which exist across the range of local strategic, 
and operational planning mechanisms, from integrated strategy through to integrated delivery. It 
has also been informed by the Every Children Matters Integration Model for Children’s Trusts, 
otherwise known as the Onion. It also illustrates better the combined responsibilities of the 
partners involved across our Children’s Trust by making clear their responsibilities to achieving 
positive change.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 54



P
a
g
e
 5

5



 32 

CHILDREN’S TRUST PLANNING ARRANGEMENTS (Fig 1) 

External links – PPB etc 
 

 

Halton  
Children’s Trust 

Board 

Children’s Trust 
 Executive Group 
 

Halton Safeguarding 
Children Board 

Parents & Carers 
Forum 

3rd Sector 
Partnership 

Youth Cabinet 

 INTEGRATED OPERATIONAL DELIVERY 

Halton Strategic Partnership 

SDP Outcome 1 
Children and young people 
are physically, emotionally 

and sexually healthy 
 

SDP Outcome 2 
Young people are 

successful when they 
leave school 

 

SDP Outcome 3 
Children and young people 
do well wherever they live 
and whatever their needs. 

 

Joint Intelligence and 
Commissioning Unit 

P
a

g
e
 5

6



 33 

The structure of the Trust and its relationship to current planning structures which exist across the 
borough provide the rigour and challenge necessary to build and deliver services and support for 
children, young people and their families so we deliver services and supports which respond better 
to the needs and wishes of our children and young people and their communities. 
 
PROMISE: We will make sure that our actions and decisions are guided by a single set of 
arrangements as this will assist us in being more accountable to our communities and 
enable children, young people and their families to receive the support and services they 
need when they need it

Page 57



 34 

Halton’s Safeguarding arrangements. 
Halton’s Safeguarding Children Board (HSCB) was formally established in February 2006 and we 
are proud of our achievements so far in building an acceptance across communities and partners 
of the importance of safeguarding and in particular disseminating the message that safeguarding 
is everybody’s business.  
 
As parents and professionals caring and working with children and young people safeguarding is 
part of everything we do. Therefore throughout the plan and throughout our promises and efforts 
to improve outcomes for children and young people our commitment to safeguarding will be and is 
an essential aspect in everything we do. We will also continue to embed safeguarding as a crucial 
aspect to all of our relationships with children and young people. 
 
The key to this will be the role and relationship HSCB has with 
the Children’s Trust. It is particularly important that HSCB has 
the capacity and ability to challenge and scrutinise the 
safeguarding practice and planning decisions made with the 
Children’s Trust in addition to making sure the operational 
demands associated with effective safeguarding practice are 
considered and acted upon appropriately by all Board and 
Trust members. 
 
In order to ensure that there is effective joint planning and 
development of safeguarding and child protection processes 
across both Boards, the following arrangements are in place: - 
 
 
- The Executive Groups of both Boards meet on a quarterly 

basis in order to challenge safeguarding practice 
- By having representation from key agencies at a Senior 

Level on both the Children’s Trust and HSCB (with some Senior Managers attending both 
Boards) ensures that safeguarding is strategically wired into Children Trust’s safeguarding 
arrangements 

- HSCB Minutes are routinely presented to Children’s Trust and vice versa 
- Shared and agreed priorities across partners to ensure a collective ownership of driving the 

agenda forward. 
 
A significant responsibility of HSCB is to share learning across services, agencies and 
professionals as a way to continue to develop our workforce and the skills they need to carry out 
effective safeguarding practice. This responsibility includes delivering training and overseeing 
policy development that meet with up to date guidance and best practice.  
 
A Multi-Agency Safeguarding Unit has been established which includes staff with lead 
responsibility for safeguarding in Health, Education and Police. This team will strengthen multi-
agency working and ownership of safeguarding by making effective use of knowledge and 
expertise across the Children’s Trust. This integrated way of working will also ensure that the 
important challenge and scrutiny of practice across all professional areas will be applied in a 
coordinated way. It will also enable public engagement activity to be managed from a “Centre of 
Excellence” and enable greater coordination and efficiency of work.  
 
The Unit will also develop and administer a formal procedure for managing conflict of opinions 
between professionals from different services relating to the safety of a child. 

HSCB provides a comprehensive 
training programme for all partners 
including the Third Sector. The 
quality and range of this Training has 
been consistently praised by local 
agencies. The Training Programme 
is regularly reviewed and updated in 
order to comply with national 
guidance, any changes to 
safeguarding/child protection 
procedures or learning from serious 
case reviews. 
For information on how to access this 
training and HSCB Business Plan 
visit: 
http://www.haltonsafeguarding.co.
uk 

 

Page 58



 35 

 
The Safeguarding Unit will lead the ongoing 
development of rigorous auditing processes 
across the range of multi agency services 
available for children and young people in 
the borough. These auditing mechanisms 
are critical to improving safeguarding 
practice and in monitoring the quality of 
frontline service delivery. This will provide 
an opportunity to scrutinise specific practice 
issues or themes e.g. resulting from a 
Serious Case Review. It is also an 
opportunity to share good practice across 
agencies in Halton. The Safeguarding Unit 
will also report on the Audit Findings on a 
quarterly basis to the Children's Trust and 
HSCB. 
 
HSCB has also led on the development of 
the Levels of Need Framework as a way of 
making sure all agencies and professionals 
have a shared understanding of their own 
responsibility in relation to safeguarding 
practice, and also to recognise when it is 
necessary to seek help from other 
agencies, whether that be via the Common 
Assessment Framework or a referral into 
Children’s Social Care. This has been a 
significant development locally as we 
continue to embed the message that 
safeguarding is everybody’s business. Fig 2 
identifies our Levels of Need Framework. 
 
PROMISE: We will continue to prioritise safeguarding as an essential part of everything we 
do in order to continue to embed the values and goals of ensuring that safeguarding is 
everybody’s business 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Level 3a 
Children with additional  

more complex needs that  
require a multi-agency  

response co-ordinated by a Lead 
Professional - either via CAF or Child in 

Need Plan 

Level 3b 
Children with a high level of 
needs, where parenting may 

be compromised, and who are 
at risk of having needs at 

Level 4 - a Child in Need plan 
is required 

Level 4 
Children with significant 
needs and compromised 
parenting/caring and in 
need of protection from 

harm 

Level 1 
Children with no  

additional needs accessing Universal 
services (including, for example, 
schools and primary health care)  

Level 2 
Children with additional needs that 

can be met via CAF and co-ordinated 
by a Lead Professional, if a multi-

agency response is required 

Fig 2 

Page 59



 36 

Halton’s Approach to Commissioning  
We have implemented our Joint Planning and Commissioning Framework and continue to 
develop our skill in commissioning.  We are also being guided by the key components highlighted 
in World Class Commissioning, which seeks to transform the ways in which services are 
commissioned by health bodies. 

 
Integrated commissioning allows 
services to join up from the earliest 
stages of planning, through to reviewing 
the commissioned service. This then 
becomes the delivery mechanism of the 
strategic and operational planning 
decisions. Locally we have worked hard 
in getting this right, and this commitment 
sees Halton continues as a regional lead 
in implementing our unique joint 
planning and commissioning framework 
across the range of commissioning 
activity, which takes place across the 
borough.  
 

 
This offers us a solid foundation, 
based on agreed values and methods 
of building a borough that is committed 
to making a difference. However this is 
just the beginning. We believe it is 
important our commissioning activity is 
more effectively targeted against what 
we know about our borough and in 
particular our agreed priorities for 
children and young people.  
 
As part of these arrangements we 
have seen closer working relationships 
develop between the Council and the 
Primary Care Trust. This will help us 
work together better by focussing 
efforts on improving health outcomes 
within Halton. In the coming months 
we will continue to develop ways 
expand on how we can build a holistic 
health service, which truly reflects our 
determination to offer a supportive and 
nurturing service for the people of 
Halton. These developments will also 
be able to respond swiftly to the 
immediate needs of children and their 
families in both a preventative and 
specialist sense.  

 
 

Halton Your Space  
Halton Your Space is a jointly commissioned service developed 
in response to young people telling us they needed a service 
which would take better care of their emotional well being. 
Young People have been heavily involved in the design 
process and have worked with the service providers to brand 
Halton Your Space.  
 
Halton Your Space is delivered by the Kings Cross Project and 
the Catholic Children’s Society to address the emotional health 
and well being needs of children and young people aged from 5 
up to 19 years of age at levels 2-3a on Halton’s Levels of Need. 
 
Your Space can offer 1:1 sessions and group work to children 
and young people struggling to cope with change and loss and 
to support them in managing their feelings. 

Mobile Outreach: 
As part of our targeted youth support activity within our Integrated 
Youth Support Strategy we are funding creative ways to engage 
our young people, for example 
 
This unique project evolved from a peer research project 
undertaken by the young people of Halton in response to their 
concerns about risk taking behaviour, substance misuse and the 
sexual health of their peers. 
 
The results of the study have led to the development of a Mobile 
Outreach service. This service will be on board a bus that will travel 
to areas identified as having the most significant need in terms of 
substance misuse, risk taking behaviour and teenage pregnancy. 
The staff on the bus will work with young people out of hours and 
on weekends to address specific concerns and worries they might 
have. 
 
The Mobile Outreach will offer a holistic service and will provide 
assertive outreach workers to make sure all young people are able 
to access the services including those young people who are 
described as hard to reach. The bus will also provide advice and 
guidance, C-Card, healthy eating advice and food for young people 
to access. 
 
The service will be managed between the lead service provider, 
Young Addaction, and the young people, and will be staffed by a 
range of Children’s Trust partners.  Young people have also been 
heavily involved in the design, development and delivery of this 
project. They have also led on the branding of the project so the 
mobile outreach has truly been a service that has evolved through 
the hard work and dedication of the young people of Halton and 
their commitment to making the lives of young people in Halton 
better 
 
We are currently working hard with our communities who will need 
to support and engage with the work of the bus as it travels around 
the borough to make sure it is promoted and accepted as a 
valuable community resource for our young people.  

Page 60



 37 

Joint Intelligence and Commissioning Unit 
We have recognised that within our partnership we have a range of systems, skills and expertise 
that will help us understand our business better.  We have agreed to collectively pool this resource 
within the framework of a Joint Intelligence and Commissioning Unit (JICU).  The unit will be 
resourced by staff from a range of agencies who will work together to ensure that: 
 

• We use the range of data and information available to all partners to ‘intelligently’ plan how we 
provide services. 

 

• We create opportunities to pool specific funding streams and by using the agreed 
commissioning framework we will maximise our resources 

 

• We will bring a multi agency discipline of ensuring research and evidence based models 
influence our developments 

 

• We will ensure that the activity for workforce development is co-ordinated and driven by the 
unit 

 
PROMISE – We will establish a Joint Intelligence and Commissioning Unit 
 
Joint Intelligence and Commissioning Document 

Page 61



 38 

 
However the world moves on and we want to 
improve.  By building on these firm foundations 
we will ensure that the process of 
commissioning will be used as a ‘tool for 
improvement’. The development of our 
Children’s Trust means that we are in a healthy 
position to accelerate progress.   
 
PROMISE: We will develop a Children’s 
Trust Commissioning Strategy for Halton 

 
 
 
 
Partnership working has been the cornerstone 
to improvements in Halton.  Our JAR in 2008 
commented upon “the high degree of co-
operation between partners and stake holders 
and the strong involvement of the community 
and voluntary sector.  The vibrancy and 
commitment of Third Sector organisations is 
key to success in Halton and we will continue 
to build upon these strong foundations in the 
coming years.   
 
The Third Sector contributes real added value 
in terms of bringing additional funds to Halton 
and has the flexibility to respond to the needs 
of children, young people and families 
particularly in times of crisis and where 
mainstream support is not accessed.   
 
Locally based organisations are uniquely 
placed to engage families in areas of 
disadvantage and families who are often 
marginalised. With these families local 
providers are delivering significant elements of 
progress that reflect real and demonstrable 
improvements in circumstances.   
 
Third Sector representation and their ability to 
bring a unique sense of creativity and 
innovation to our inclusive planning 
arrangements for commissioning of services 
demands that Third Sector organisations will 
continue to work with the statutory 
organisations in Halton to drive improvements 
in services and outcomes.   
 
 

Strong Third Sector Making A 
Difference To Young People In Halton 
When Jane arrived at the Canal Boat Project, 
she was 15 yrs old and had not attended 
school since her father died 18 months 
previously. She had caring responsibilities 
within her extended family and was at risk and 
vulnerable. Initially, she had very low self-
esteem, lacked confidence and had very little 
hope for her own future. 
 
Despite her lack of attainment in school, Jane 
accepted support from a range of services in 
Halton. These included Action for Children 
Butterflies, Action for Children Branches, 
Kings Cross counselling services and from 
accreditation programmes delivered by the 
Princes Trust Team Halton, the Petty Pool 
Trust and Connexions PAYP programmes. 
 
Jane also got involved as a young volunteer 
and volunteered in Ghana as a Platform2 
volunteer and volunteered in Romania in a 
Housebuilding project.  
 
By taking part in these projects Jane 
developed the confidence to take control of 
her own learning and went on to a NLDC basic 
adult learning sessions before signing up for a 
Youth Work Foundation course. 
 
Despite being temporarily homeless during the 
past year, Jane is proud to have met Gordon 
Brown, Prime Minister and to have received 
the High Sheriff of Cheshire’s award for 
volunteering.  
 
Jane has proved a strong third sector can offer 
young people support and opportunities to turn 
their own lives around and to achieve their full 
potential. 

 

Commissioning services to support Young Carers 
Evie is a young carer and talks openly about her mum. 
‘Since the operation mum gets out of breath easily. So 
when she’s not well, I do the dishes and the other 
housework.’ Since last year Susan has regular visits 
from a project worker from our commissioned Young 
Carers Project at HITS. This gives Evie the chance to 
talk to somebody, meet with other young carers and to 
take time out from her caring responsibilities. Evie talks 
about the work this project does and the support she 
receives from the worker. ‘She is friendly and really 
understands what’s happening with mum. I can talk to 
her and it’s really useful to have someone to talk to 
outside the family. It gives you a break and someone to 
talk to, which is brilliant.’ 

Page 62



 39 

Promise  
The Children’s Trust will continue the strong partnership with Third Sector organisations to 
develop services for enterprising behaviour and entrepreneurial work and will ensure Third 
Sector involvement in planning and delivering services.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Integrated Governance and Integrated Strategy in Action 
 
One of the themes which came 
across strongly during our 
consultations was the need to offer 
a continuum of support and care 
throughout the life of the child, into 
their teenage years and as they 
move on into adulthood. 
Participants talked passionately 
about how early experiences will 
impact later on, that building a 
child’s self esteem is crucial to 
reaching their goals and finding 
their place in the world. So, when 
planning for a child’s future it is 
imperative we think about their past 
and their present. 
 
 
 
 
 

I 
 

Integrated governance and strategy allows us to effectively 
plan for this perspective as it allows us to join up our 
strategic planning mechanisms in such a way that 
promotes a child-focussed perspective. It also identifies 
clearly the areas where we need to focus our attention to 
make sure any support or service offered to children and 
their families reflects their current situation as well as their 
hopes for the future. The following provides the details as 
to how this joined up approach has enabled us to start 
thinking more creatively about how to build our services 
and supports around the needs of the child now and their 
futures. 

 
 
 

Integrated Disabled Children’s 
Services 
We have integrated our health and 
social care services to disabled 
children in Halton through the 
Partnership arrangement between 
Halton Borough Council and Halton 
and St Helens Primary Care Trust. 
 
This is a formalised arrangement 
with integrated governance and 
has been formalised in a Health Act 
1999 s31 Partnership Agreement 
and pooled budget arrangement.  
 
The overall aim of the integrated 
service is to ensure that families 
receive a holistic and seamless 

Commissioning with Young Carers 
We are establishing a young carers group that will help to inform both service and strategic 
development of young carer’s services across the borough. This group will also take some 
responsibility for the allocation of carers break grants so service providers can begin to develop 
breaks that young carers want and can benefit from.  

Children in Care Partnership Board 
The partnership board is a multi agency partnership with 
the purpose of driving forward our ambition for children in 
our care.  
 
The work of the partnership board is determined through 
the Multi Agency Children in Care Strategy and Action 
Plan, which is primarily focussed on promoting and 
addressing our Corporate Parenting responsibilities to the 
children and young people in our care. This will ensure we 
deliver the best for the children and young people we care 
for, so that when we are asked the question would this care 
be good enough for my child, we can say wholeheartedly, 
yes it is. 
 
It is leading on the local implementation of the good 
practice noted in Care Matters and the Children and Young 
People Act 2008 with the aim of making sure we do 
everything we can to care for children and young people 
who are in our care and to support them in achieving their 
potential. 
 

Page 63



 40 

A child’s future will depend on their past, and this is why we have worked hard to build a number 
of Children’s Centres in some of our communities that have the most significant challenges before 
them, where economic hardship, poor quality housing, low educational achievement and 
attainment and high unemployment are factors they face every day. Our Children’s Centres have 
become part of these communities and are building both parental and child self esteem through a 
range of activities and programmes as a way of overcoming some of the barriers these 
communities face.  
 
We value the importance of these early years for 
our children and this is why we have made sure 
our Children’s Centres offer high quality child care, 
with early years teaching professionals supporting 
the care our youngest children receive in addition 
to benefits and employment advice and parenting 
classes, services that are key in areas of great 
challenge to families. We have also worked hard 
to develop an extensive range of registered child 
minders and private and voluntary sector providers 
of childcare as a means of making sure parents 
and carers have a choice of arrangement for their 
child(ren). So far in Halton this sector employs 
approximately 650 people. 
 
These services become ever more significant as 
we enter a period of economic instability, where 
jobs become less stable and families become 
increasingly worried about their children and their 
futures.  

 
 
We believe that the supports and services we have 
developed in these early years will start to pay 
increasing dividends for us and our children make 
the transition into primary and then onto secondary 
education. We have already seen significant 
improvements to both our attendance and 
achievements at primary and secondary level and 
we expect these improvements to continue as 
continue to develop and embed these plans into 
frontline practice. 
 
The transition into secondary and the many 
challenges young people face during this time 
makes this period of their lives full of choices and 
uncertainties. This is why we are building our 14-
19 agenda around the needs and wishes of our 
children and young people while making sure it 
links into the needs of the borough in terms of the 
skills, knowledge and qualifications to build on 
Halton’s growth in recent years.  
 

Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 
Our Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2008 
demonstrated that in most geographical areas 
and age ranges there is sufficient high quality 
childcare. However there are some gaps, which 
will be filled, in the coming months.  
These are: 
� After school provision for children aged 5-14 
� Provision outside the traditional 8am-6pm time 

period 
� Increased amounts of consultation with 

employers in determining the childcare needs 
for employees. 

The Childcare Sufficiency Assessment will be 
reviewed annually but already we are seeing 
progress being made in some of the areas noted 
above during our 2009 review. 
For more information please see 
http://hbccms.halton-
borough.gov.uk/content/educationandlearnin
g/childcare/ 
 

Building Schools for the Future (BSF) and 14-19 
Strategy 
BSF and the 14-19 strategy will be key tools in 
delivering our ambitions for children and young 
people in Halton. Both will provide the innovation, 
standards and services to offer children and young 
people 21

st
 century facilities and world-class 

standards that will enable them to achieve their 
ambitions and goals. 
 
The BSF building programme and the 14-19 
strategy have been determined by the needs of our 
local communities, and the needs of employers 
both now and in the future. 
 
BSF and 14-19 strategy will be significant in 
reducing the inequalities we see between 
communities, further promote the sense of 
inclusion for disabled children and children with 
special educational needs and support efforts to 
promote the participation of young people in 
education, employment and training by providing a 
flexible and responsive curriculum.  
 
In tandem with the 14-19 strategy we are working 
together to build learning communities where all 
our learners, young and old can develop a real and 
lasting enjoyment of learning which in turn will 
shape the ambition we have for our borough and 
its children and young people. 
 

Page 64



 41 

Primary Strategy for Change 
 
Halton has been highly successful in achieving a significant and above national average rise in 
attainment at the end of the primary phase. The percentage of children attaining national averages 
at age 11 years has increased in English from 76% to 83% and in mathematics from 75% to 81% 
over the past 3 years. This has resulted in Halton being identified as the 4th most improved local 
authority nationally!  
 
The good improvement in English and Mathematics has resulted in Halton meeting the 2009 target 
a year early. This improvement indicates a positive trajectory towards the Children’s Plan target to 
ensure that every child is ready for secondary school with at least 90% achieving at or above the 
expected level in both English and mathematics by age 11. 
 
Working in partnership with schools the ambition is to further improve to achieve excellent 
standards for our children, particularly in relation to addressing the attainment gap across different 
groups of children and young people including Children in Care, children eligible for free school 
meals and underachieving boys.  
 
In Halton we see the Primary Strategy for Change (Primary Capital Programme - PCP) as a key 
tool to accelerate progress by providing the opportunity to develop 21st century facilities and 
enable world class standards and services for children and their families to be delivered. This 
specifically supports those families in the most deprived areas facing the most challenging 
circumstances. 
 
The vision for the PCP is aligned to the Building Schools for the Future programme as we see this 
as a 0-19 transformation of learning in Halton: 
 
“To further develop learning environments which are innovative, flexible and 
dynamic where every learner is valued and has the opportunity to achieve and realise their 
individual potential” 
 
There is a responsibility to develop the strategy with partners and to act as a commissioner of 
local services that both reflect the needs and develops the aspirations of the local community and 
contribute to the national and local priorities for Halton. This is a challenging role and will require a 
comprehensive evaluation and re-alignment of the primary estate to ensure that investment is 
targeted to areas where it will have the greatest impact. 
 
Primary Strategy for Change   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65



 42 

 
 
 
 
 

The aim of our Sustainable Community Strategy is to create an economically prosperous borough that 
encourages investment, entrepreneurship, enterprise and business growth, and improves the education, 
skills and employment prospects of our residents and workforce so that all of Halton’s population can 
share in the opportunities our borough affords. This again is why it is essential we continue to join up our 
strategic planning arrangements to make sure the children and young people of today become the 
talented and skilled workforce that can make the most of these opportunities in the future.  
 

We know this will be difficult given the multiple challenges Halton’s history has left us, in addition to the 
anticipated effects the economic recession will have on our growth as we move into the next decade of this 
new century. This is why we are making sure our strategic planning arrangements reach the organisations, 
businesses and agencies that will provide the employment opportunities for the future.  
 

Page 66



 43 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Housing: 
Having a safe room over your head is one of the fundamental 
issues that makes you feel secure and confident enough to 
access a range of opportunities on offer 
 
Locally we are slowly seeing significant improvements to 
some of our housing stock. This will continue over the coming 
years as we make every effort to improve the quality and type 
of accommodation available for families in Halton. The 
challenge for us will be to ensure all vulnerable groups have 
choices about where they live and to make sure we are able 
to provide any supports, which are necessary, to ensure they 
are able to enjoy a barrier free environment.  
 
This is particularly true for disabled children and their 
families, disabled young people as they leave home and 
become independent and young people leaving the care of 
the local authority. It is imperative we get the accommodation 
needs of these groups right as this is the most significant 
factor in securing improved outcomes for these groups of 
young people.   
 
We also are aware that we need to provide more general 
support and awareness to all young people who are moving 
into their own accommodation for the first time 
 
Promise: We will continue to work hard across 
organisational and professional boundaries to make sure 
disabled children and young people live in barrier free 
environments and communities 
 
Promise: We will continue to work with partners to 
establish a range of secure, safe, stable and permanent 
accommodation, which young people leaving our care 
can move into, and stay for as long as they need it.  
 

 

The Youth Crime Action Plan 
The Youth Crime Action Plan sets out a 
comprehensive package of measures to prevent 
and tackle youth crime through a triple-track 
approach of tough enforcement, non negotiable 
support and prevention.  
 
At the heart of this action plan is a recognition that 
the factors, which contribute to offending 
behaviour, also contribute to many other poor 
outcomes for young people. If we tackle these we 
will prevent youth crime and cut re-offending, but 
also deliver improvements in wider outcomes for 
children and young people. There are 7 elements 
that Halton is required to deliver upon: 

• Operation Stay Safe 

•  Street based teams 

• After School Patrols 

• Reparation in leisure time 

• YOT workers in custody suites 

• Crime Prevention Family Intervention Project 

• Implementation of ‘Think Family’ reforms 
 
There are a range of initiatives in Halton currently 
taking place, these include  
 
• Using child protection legislation to remove 

young people from the streets at night and take 
them to a safe place, building on lessons from 
initiatives such as Operation Staysafe;  

• Using street-based teams of workers to tackle 
groups of young people involved in crime and 
disorder 

• Tackling anti-social behaviour and disorder at 
school closing time by increasing after-school 
police patrols where needed. 

• Placing Youth Offending Team workers in 
police custody suites so that young offenders 
can be assessed and directed to appropriate 
services at the earliest opportunity;  

• Making young offenders feel the consequences 
of their actions by expanding YOT reparation 

schemes during their leisure time, including on 
Friday and Saturday nights;  

• Developing Family Intervention Projects to 
work with the most vulnerable and problematic 
families with children at risk of offending, with 
non-negotiable elements and sanctions for a 
failure to engage;  

• Implementation of the 'think family' reforms to 
provide an integrated and appropriate service 
response to all families at risk by the end of the 
funding period. 

 
Within Halton we will be delivering on the Youth 
Crime Action Plan elements in conjunction with the 
refresh of the action plan within the local Anti-
Social Behaviour – Promoting Positive Behaviour. 
 
Youth Crime Action Plan  

Page 67



 44 

 Transport: 
Children, young people and their families have commented throughout this plan about their concerns they 
have about getting around our borough safely using their own and public transport.  
 
This will be supported by an increasing commitment across all sectors to develop creative ways of assisting 
and enabling all children and young people to access activities, leisure opportunities, school, college and 
training.  
 
Building on good practice established to date such as the Independent Travel Training scheme for young 
people with learning difficulties to support independent bus travel, new and improved bus routes and 
discounted travel for learners in partnership with Connexions, we are determined to provide a transport 
network fit for the future of our borough.  
 
We will also make the following promise: 
 
Promise: 
To set up a Young Persons Travel Forum to enable the voice of young people to be heard by those 
planning and providing transport for young people across Halton. 
 
Further detail about our plans and commitments can be found in the following places. 
Mersey Gateway Sustainable Transport Strategy 
http://www.dft.gov.uk/pdf/pgr/inclusion/childrenandyoungpeople/youngpeoplesneeds 

Mid Term Review of the Local Transport Plan 
In Halton it is believed that years of road safety education, training and publicity, engineering and school travel plan 
work has produced a progressive decline in the number pf children killed or seriously injured. We have seen the 
numbers of children and young people killed or seriously injured significantly reduced from a yearly average of 33 to 4 
in 2006 and 11 in 2007. 
 
However it is recognised that even one child death or injury is one too many, and our vision for 2025 would be to 
eradicate child deaths or serious injuries on our roads completely. 
 
Actions taken which have and are continuing to contribute towards safer roads include: 
 

• Casualty and collision reductions are continuing to be sought through a wide range of initiatives including 
traditional engineering work, the use of safety cameras and road safety education, training and publicity 

 

• As a high proportion of the Borough's schools now have Travel Plans in place, it is possible to place greater 
emphasis on implementing the measures recommended in the adopted Plans, some of which are aimed at 
reducing the risk of child involvement in road accidents. 

 

• The Cheshire Safer Roads Partnership, through an initiatives fund is able to sponsor innovative road safety 
education, training and publicity projects to build on existing work in this area. The work focuses on engagement 
with communities to change road safety attitudes and behaviour, and thereby reduce the casualties incurred by 
vulnerable groups. It is complimentary to that undertaken at a local level by Halton officers. 

 
In future years these initiatives will be continued and developed, as will the shift of emphasis of recent times towards 
carrying out a larger number of smaller local safety schemes to ensure that further progress is made in reducing road 
casualties in Halton. 
 
Mid-Term Review of Local Transport Plan  
 

Page 68



 45 

Core Strategy 
The Halton Core Strategy represents a major mechanism for the delivery of the spatial elements of 
the Sustainable Community Strategy and will be the central document within the Halton Local 
Development Framework, the folder of plans and strategies, which will direct and support the 
development of Halton.  
 
The Core Strategy seeks to establish the development principles, which will improve the physical, 
social and economic environment of the Borough over the coming years and is being prepared in 
consultation with the public, the Council’s partners and other interested parties, ensuring that the 
views of those living and working in Halton are being taken on board. 
 
Within the Core Strategy, planning policies give emphasis to the needs of children and young 
people throughout its important themes.  The themes covered are wide-ranging and thus relevant 
to many of the components of the Children and Young People’s Plan.  Priority will be given to 
ensuring everyone can live in a decent home and neighbourhood, where the accommodation 
needs of all individuals are met.  
 
Maintaining and improving the diverse network of green spaces in Halton will provide opportunities 
for children and young people to access and participate in physically active, healthy lifestyles.  
Priority is also given to the creation of inclusive and sustainable communities, where all residents 
can enjoy integrated community services and facilities, which are conveniently located in relation 
to their home, work or school.  Educational establishments will be a focus for activity within our 
local communities, with support given to the programme of remodelling currently underway.  
Linking in with employment opportunities that arise in the borough, emphasis will be given to 
providing jobs, which local people can access, and encouraging firms to deliver initiatives which 
provide training for their workers. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
PROMISE – We will produce a Children’s Trust Equality and Diversity Strategy  
 

The Halton Lodge Fishing Club 
Halton Lodge Children’s Centre Fishing Club has been awarded an Equality Award for recognising diversity (2009).  
The fishing club received the award for the excellent work it does in bringing together the local community to take 
part in an activity, which brings together adults and children from a variety of backgrounds.  This includes those 
children and young people identified as likely to become involved or are involved in not risk taking behaviours.   
 
The club is supported by a number of local agencies who have recognised that such intergenerational work breaks 
down barriers and promotes a sense of community and partnership across ages and backgrounds.  This club has 
proved positive and we are now seeing similar clubs popping up all over the borough 
Halton Equality and Diversity Strategy  

The Arts 
We have a strong and vibrant Arts and Culture philosophy in Halton.  This is evidenced by the fact that: 
 

• Halton has almost one third of the borough’s schools involved in transformational school improvement 
programmes.  This forms a potent and critical mass of school communities engaged in cultural change through 
national and regional partnership work an wok with external ‘creative agents’ to transform their curriculum and 
offer new and exciting opportunities to engage children and young people.  One of the Halton themes for new 
Halton Schools of Enquiry is ‘The role of Parents/Carers as Co-Educators’ 

 

• A family, cross-age Arts and Crafts Club has successfully engaged children and young people from 3 years to 
21 years on a weekly basis running from the warden’s caravan on the site.  Over the years, the young people 
have experienced a wide range of arts and cultural opportunities and regularly participated in the annual 
Midsummer Arts Festival at Norton Priory Museum and Gardens 

Page 69



 46 

Integrated processes and front line delivery 
 
Integrated processes and front line delivery will describe how our partnership will join up the way 
we do business to improve how we deliver services and supports to children and young people.   
This section will also offer a description of how we are going to continue to develop our workforce 
in ways that promote integrated working and integrated delivery, again so we can continue to 
make sure children and families are receiving the help and guidance in the most responsive and 
flexible way  
 
Integrated Workforce Strategy 
We know that our local workforce is the most 
significant tool that will improve outcomes and 
assist children and young people in achieving 
their goals and ambitions.  We are currently 
using innovative ways to develop our teams 
and the skills of our workforce around the 
needs of communities. Using the 
Organisational Development Services (ODS) 
model of Population Centric Workforce 
Planning, we are thinking beyond qualifications 
and professional labels and addressing how 
real improvements can be offered by matching 
skills and knowledge to the needs of our 
children and young people. (For more 
information see the Children’s Integrated 
Workforce Development Strategy) 
 
Developing and implementing such creative 
approaches to strategic and operational 
planning arrangements offers a significant 
opportunity, but the ambitions we have for our 
children and young people demand we tackle 
the challenges within our communities using 
the means and talents we have available to us. 
 

Our current activity includes a wide ranging 
partnership approach to understanding our 
workforce better, so we are better prepared to 
develop their skills and knowledge in the future. To 
assist us in this task we are currently undertaking a 
comprehensive needs analysis as part of a research 
exercise developed by the Children’s Workforce 
Development Council. It is expected this will enable 
us to understand those areas within our workforce, 
which may need further development as well as 
focussing activity on the areas that are likely to have 
the greatest positive impact on both our priorities 
and the Every Child Matters outcomes. 

 
 

Working With Transitions 
The transition planning process started for Rose 
as she got closer to her 17th birthday. Rose has 
complex needs so to support her making the 
transition in adulthood multi agency meetings 
were arranged in order to provide the necessary 
foundations to work with Rose and develop her 
own transition plan, using the Person Centred 
Planning Framework.  
 

By using this approach it allowed Rose and her 
family to work with the range of professionals 
involved to explore the options and empower the 
family to make positive choices and maintain 
those positive relationships which had been built 
up over Rose’s childhood.  
 

Due to the extensive planning and preparation 
Rose was able to move into her own supported 
tenancy where she was supported by staff and 
where her family were confident in the care and 
support she would receive.  
 

Transition Protocol 
 

Multi Agency Transition Strategy for 
Young People with Complex Needs 

Co Location of Staff to meet the needs of 
children in care 
On our Permanence Team we have co 
located professionals from CAMHS and 
Substance Misuse services as we have 
found these issues tend to be the most 
predominant concerns and worries for our 
children and young people in care. By 
locating this expertise within the 
Permanence team our frontline social 
workers are able to access the specialist 
support and advice that enables them to 
support children and young people better, 
and improve their overall outcomes.  

Page 70



 47 

PROMISE: We will support our workforce to be the best they can be by offering 
opportunities to develop their skills and knowledge in supporting our ambition to make a 
significant difference to children and young people. 
 
The plans we have to make sure services identify and intervene as early as possible: 
 
Halton’s Children’s Trust partners are fully committed to ensuring that we concentrate on 
preventing issues escalating rather than storing up problems for the future. 

 
We have major plans to introduce needs led locality 
working. For Halton our goal is to have Children’s Trust 
Teams based in locality areas across Halton. It is 
expected these teams will be able to respond quickly, 
sensitively and flexibly to the calls of families or 
professionals for extra support to enable families to 
receive the help when they need it. 
 
The teams will also provide professional advice and 
support for professionals already working within our 
communities. 
 
We are currently piloting this approach in one 
community and anticipate the values, goals and 
approaches we have built into this pilot will not only 
secure its success but also allow us to roll out the new 
way of working across the whole of Halton. 
 

We are still in the early stages of learning from this pilot and will continually review and assess the 
most appropriate methods and skills necessary to support families before their concerns or issues 
escalate and require more significant measures. So far we have made sure the composition of the 
teams is based upon what we know about the needs and issues within each community.  
 
As we role this pilot out across the borough we expect there will be a core team of staff from a 
range of professional backgrounds, who will work as part of a team located together within one of 
our local communities. There will also be a virtual team of specialist workers who can be called to 
provide specific support depending on assessed need. It is this virtual team that we anticipate will 
differ across communities and locality teams, as this team will offer the specialist care, knowledge 
and support families may need in specific circumstances.  
 
PROMISE: We will introduce locality working across the borough in April 2010  
 
The Common Assessment Framework (CAF) will be an integral part of this work, both in terms of 
supporting practitioners who are undertaking CAF’s and in identifying those children and young 
people who may benefit from a CAF. 
 
Common Assessment Framework (CAF) 
The Common Assessment Framework has been established as part of our early intervention 
service for children, young people and their families. We are continuing to embed its principles and 
practices across service areas and these include all services working with adults in Halton.  
 

TARGETED FAMILY SUPPORT 
TSF is one example of a number of 
initiatives currently being developed in 
Halton to ensure that a continuum of family 
support and parenting is embedded right 
across the levels of need. To ensure this 
happens the children’s workforce in Halton 
will receive appropriate training and 
support to enable them to meet the needs 
of all children and young people in Halton. 
 
The TSF project aims to integrate the 
pathways for identifying children in need to 
ensure the most vulnerable children 
receive responsive, robust, well 
coordinated and targeted early intervention 
and support, delivered through children’s 
centre Family Support Workers. 
 

Page 71



 48 

CAF is also supporting the development of closer working relationships across services and 
professionals working with children and young people and which means we are able to get better 
at making sure families receive the care and support they need at the earliest opportunity.   This is 
a particular focus as we make every effort to safeguard the welfare of children and young people 
and to build preventative services, which tackle the early indicators of harm within families.  
 
We know that intervening early to support children and their families is a key feature that secures 
the long-term outcomes for children and young people. We also know that we need to balance this 
work with making sure those professions which are responsible for protecting children from 
significant harm have the skills, knowledge and capacity to carry out these responsibilities 
effectively and safely.  
 
This balance is a necessary one to get right as it will make a significant difference to the lives of 
children and young people who may require additional support. Already external scrutiny is 
recognising CAF is making a difference for example our Joint Area Review commented on our 
excellent progress in developing CAF in Halton.  
 
This excellent work to date now provides us with solid foundations to take CAF forward. So in 
reflecting on these comments and on our progress to date we now consider it important to 
consider how best to expand the range and purpose of CAF across the borough as a means of 
further embedding the importance of early intervention and identification for families across the 
borough as a means of safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children and young people.. 
 
PROMISE: Review and expand the use of CAF as a key mechanism in supporting our 
commitment to early intervention and prevention. 
 
How will we manage performance? 

The JAR recognised that we had robust performance management processes that have been 
identified as good practice by external agencies including the Audit Commission and Government 
Office.  A Performance Management Framework (PMF) has been implemented to systematically 
report against identified priorities on a regular basis to the Children’s Trust and the Directorate’s 
Senior Management Team.  The framework has taken the principles of Outcomes Based 
Accountability (OBA) to establish a model that ensures the intelligent use of performance data 
alongside consultation and feedback information and the knowledge and experience of front line 
staff.   
 
The Children’s Trust PMF splits performance management into population accountability, which 
focuses on conditions of well-being and performance accountability, which relates to the impact of 
services. The Children’s Trust has responsibility for population accountability as it is recognised 
that to impact on these high level outcomes a range of partners will need to be involved.  The 
Directorate service planning process which links to the Council’s Corporate performance reporting 
is focused on performance accountability and the impact of our services.  
 
A major area for development in our performance management processes has been the 
development of locality profiles.  This has allowed the identification of need at a local level, which 
has then informed the commissioning and development of services within localities.  An essential 
part of performance management in Halton is to know our communities and understand what the 
performance data is telling us.  It is this story behind the indicators that provides the rich qualitative 
information that allows us to use this data to develop our services and support, which meet the 
needs of our children and young people. 
 

Page 72



 49 

Geographical needs analyses are also used to identify areas for development, with funding 
targeted to these areas.  The JNA Connect web based system is utilised in all Children Centres as 
it holds core data on all individuals accessing services and projects.  Through this system we are 
able to identify service take up along with any gaps, which may exist in provision.  The system has 
already assisted in identifying the needs of differing communities, for example it showed that in 
some areas there is a greater need for Family Support Services than in others, therefore we have 
redeployed staff accordingly. 
 

We mentioned earlier that we value the challenge and ideas that external scrutiny can bring and 
this is reflected in our relationship with Government Office North West. We welcome support in 
trying to improve and because we readily accept guidance and support we have been fortunate in 
securing cross cutting support from our network of external supports across the region and 
nationally in order to guide our service developments for those issues that locally we are finding 
hard to address.  
 
This has led to the agreement of our Joint Improvement Support Plan for Halton.  The specific 
areas for support within the JISP include 
 

� A cross field force support package which challenges our approach to tackling young 
people who are not in education, employment or training. 

� Specific activity in developing an Obesity Action plan. 
� Comprehensive support and challenge in reducing under 18 conception rates. 
� Support in the implementation of Service Case Reviews. 
� Support in developing our workforce. 

 
How we will target our resources: 
 
Halton Borough Council and its partners are committed to providing the resources required to 
deliver effective children’s services and improving outcomes for children and young people.   
 
The Children and Young People Directorate budget is over £29.4 million. This does not include the 
Direct Schools Grant and other Grants we receive from Central Government. Most of these 
resources are already invested in existing service provision, so we have embarked on a 
programme of service re-design as a means of providing opportunities to re-align funding to meet 
priorities and ensure the best use of the resources available. For example a comprehensive 
review of attendance and behaviour support resulted in increased investment, which led to a 
significant improvement in secondary attendance. Additionally we have also re-engineered the 
resources available through Children’s Centres to release sufficient resources to allow the 
authority to commission additional debt counselling services, which we have identified as 
important for our communities at this time of economic uncertainty.  
 
In addition, to the Dedicated Schools Grant and the Core Funding, Halton will receive additional 
grant support of £12.6 million revenue to support Children's Services.  Capital grant funding has 
also been approved to transform primary provision, a business case has been submitted to 
transform secondary provision and further resources have been allocated to improve early years 
and youth provision within the authority. 
 
Halton and St Helen' s PCT is responsible for the planning and funding of all health services 
across the two boroughs.  The estimated PCT budget for the range of services provided for 
children and young people in Halton using a population weighting to arrive at a split between St 
Helen's and Halton is in excess of £11.1 million. 

Page 73



 50 

We will continue to be review our service provision to ensure better alignment to priorities and 
allow resources to be targeted to need. 
 
Of the funding available to support the delivery of the Children and Young People’s Plan £79.8 
million is ring fenced to the Dedicated Schools Budget.  To try and mitigate the high levels of 
deprivation within the authority, for the multi-year period 2008-2011 the level of funding to support 
the most deprived pupils in Halton has increased each year by over £2.5 million. In addition the 
budget available to support pupils entitled to a free meals in 2009/2010 has been increased by 
over £250,000.    
 
There has been a detailed review and revision of the special educational needs provision for 
schools aimed at increasing inclusion, this has enabled us to re-cycle resources by enabling us to 
develop earlier support for pupils with special needs. In addition, March 2009 School Forum 
agreed to support increased funding for Education Support for Children in Care. 
 
To ensure that funding is targeted to the greatest area of need Working Neighbourhood Funding 
will be used to resource and support the four key ambitions in Halton. 
 
Joint commissioning of services and increased investment in prevention and early intervention 
measures will continue to be supported particularly through the development of the locality project. 
 
Promise – We will develop a Children’s Trust Resource Strategy 
 

Budget
Dedicated Schools Budget

Children's Services Budget

Government Grant

PCT

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

£79.8m 

£29.4m 

£12.6m 

£11.1m 

Page 74



 51 

The Framework To Make This Happen For Children And Young 
People: 

 
The lives and worlds of children and young people are affected by a number of different factors 
both inside and outside the immediate walls of their homes, schools and communities. It is 
therefore important to recognise and work with the range of plans and strategies currently 
underway in Halton. We have mentioned some of these documents throughout this plan, many 
others also exist, and each will play either a major or a minor role in delivering better futures for 
our children and young people. 
 
It is therefore essential we join up the values, plans and aims of each of these documents to firstly 
make sure we are planning for our borough in a systematic, flexible and responsive way, where 
we avoid duplication and promote outcomes. Secondly to recognise that there are also a number 
of additional pressures operating outside the remit of individual plans or outside the control of 
agencies and professionals. Each will impact on our communities and the activities undertaken by 
support services so it is imperative we build a framework to make sure no stone is left unturned 
and that each element is considered.  
 
The following illustration then describes how we see these processes and mechanisms coming 
together, where we are able to represent the unique relationships, which exist across the range of 
planning mechanisms to enable each professional, organisation and agency to recognise their 
responsibility to improving outcomes for children and young people. This responsibility may be 
indirect, but as we have seen throughout this plan everybody shares a responsibility to improving 
the outcomes and lives of children and young people in Halton.  
 
These concerns and issues will be tackled and will not prevent us from setting our sights high and 
working with partners to realise our aspirations for children and young people in Halton. To assist 
this coordination a Children and Young People’s Priorities Framework has been developed as a 
way to demonstrate not only the links between strategic planning arrangements but also how each 
aspect is interrelated and cannot be tackled in isolation. It is the purpose of the framework to 
illustrate this partnership approach to addressing our challenges and achieving our ambitions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 75



 52 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sustainable 
Communities 

Strategy 
Ambitions 

EVERY CHILD MATTERS 
OUTCOMES 
No single agency can improve 
outcomes for children and young 
people; we all need to work 
together 

CHILDREN’S TRUST PRIORITIES 
We set 3 priorities to focus our partnership work, which capture the most important 
hopes for children and young people in Halton and their families. By doing things 

differently and being more ambitious about less, the Children’s Trust will be able to focus 
its efforts on those hard to move issues that need a concerted partnership approach to 

improve outcomes. 

INDICATORS OF SUCCESS 
For each priority outcome there are indicators of success, measures which show whether partnership working 

is doing what it is intended to do and improving outcomes. 
. The indicators of success in this section of each diagram have been chosen as a way of telling whether the 
Children’s Trust as a partnership is making a positive difference to the lives of our children and young people. 
There are lots of other targets, which the individual agencies within the partnership have to meet, which are in 

the ‘performance accountability’ section below 

                 RANGE OF OTHER IMPORTANT INDICATORS 
There are lots of indicators which agencies and partnerships measure, some which are needed for government 
requirements and others, which are used to measure individual agency performance. These include: 

• Local Area Agreement  

• National Performance Indicator Set 

• Primary Care Trust Vital Signs 
• Details of these performance measures can be found in the supporting documents for this Plan,  

The Sustainable Communities Strategy sets out 
steps to be taken to make real improvements in 
the lives of people in the Borough. The 5 
strategic priorities in the Strategy are: 

• A Healthy Halton  

• Halton’s Urban Renewal 

• Halton’s Children and Young People 

• Employment, Learning and Skills in 
Halton 

• A Safer Halton 

Our Vision For Halton 
Halton will be a thriving and vibrant borough where 
people can learn and develop their skills, enjoy a 
good quality of life with good health; a high quality, 
modern urban environment; the opportunity for all to 
fulfil their potential; greater wealth and equality; 
sustained by a thriving business community; and 
within safer, stronger and more attractive 
neighbourhoods. 

Population Accountability  
Concerned with improving outcomes 
for whole populations at community, 
city or national levels.  The focus is on 
partnership groups who have an 
interest in a particular outcome, EG, 
“we want our children to be healthy”. 

Performance Accountability  
Concerned with managers and staff who are 
responsible for improving outcomes for 
service users.  It focuses on three key 
performance measurement areas: 

• How much did we do (quantity) 

• How well did we do it (quality) 

• Is anyone better off (customer outcomes) 

P
a

g
e
 7

6



 53 

The frameworks for each of our priority areas: 
The next 3 diagrams offer more information relating to the detail of how the many requirements 
placed on local; areas and their partners will be brought together as a means of making sure our 
Service Delivery Partnerships are able to work within the wider context of our priorities and the 
relationships our priorities have with the wider strategic planning and delivery mechanisms we 
have in Halton.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 77



 54 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sustainable 
Communities 

Strategy 
Ambitions 

Be 
Healthy 
 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE ARE PHYSICALLY, 
EMOTIONALLY AND SEXUALLY HEALTHY 

INDICATORS OF SUCCESS 
 

RANGE OF OTHER IMPORTANT INDICATORS 

Stay 
Safe 
 

Enjoy & 
Achieve 
 Achieve 

Economic 
Wellbeing 

 

Make a 
Positive 

Contribution 

5 EVERY CHILD MATTERS 
OUTCOMES 

 

Local Area 
Agreement 
 

National 
Indicators 
 

PCT Vital 
Signs 
 

See SDP Service Plans for further details 

Performance Accountability  
Concerned with managers and staff who are 
responsible for improving outcomes for 
service users.  It focuses on three key 
performance measurement areas: 

• How much did we do (quantity) 

• How well did we do it (quality) 

• Is anyone better off (customer outcomes) 

Population Accountability  
Concerned with improving outcomes 
for whole populations at community, 
city or national levels.  The focus is on 
partnership groups who have an 
interest in a particular outcome, EG, 
“we want our children to be healthy”. 

Reduce Obesity amongst 
primary school age children in 

Year 6 

Reduce the 
percentage of 

young people who 
consume alcohol 

Increase the 
percentage of young 
people in Halton who 

are happy 

Reduce the 
percentage of young 

people who worry 
about being bullied 

Reduce the Under 
18 conception rate 

Reduce the infant  
mortality rate 

P
a

g
e
 7

8



 55 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sustainable 
Communities 

Strategy 
Ambitions 

Be 
Healthy 
 

EVERY YOUNG PERSON IS SUCCESSFUL 
WHEN THEY LEAVE SCHOOL 

INDICATORS OF SUCCESS 
 

RANGE OF OTHER IMPORTANT INDICATORS 

Stay 
Safe 
 

Enjoy & 
Achieve 
 Achieve 

Economic 
Wellbeing 

 

Make a 
Positive 

Contribution 

5 EVERY CHILD MATTERS 
OUTCOMES 

 

Local Area 
Agreement 
 

National 
Indicators 
 

PCT Vital 
Signs 
 

See SDP Service Plans for further details 

Performance Accountability  
Concerned with managers and staff who are 
responsible for improving outcomes for 
service users.  It focuses on three key 
performance measurement areas: 

• How much did we do (quantity) 

• How well did we do it (quality) 

• Is anyone better off (customer outcomes) 

Population Accountability  
Concerned with improving outcomes 
for whole populations at community, 
city or national levels.  The focus is on 
partnership groups who have an 
interest in a particular outcome, EG, 
“we want our children to be healthy”. 

Increase the percentage of 
Young People achieving their 

estimated level of achievement 
at GCSE 

Reduce the 
number of young 
people worried 

about their future 

Increase the 
percentage of Young 

People achieving 
Level 3 by 19 

Increase the 
percentage of young 
people participating 
in positive activities 

Increase the 
percentage of young 
people volunteering 

Reduce the percentage of 
16-18 year olds who are 

NEET 

P
a
g
e
 7

9



 56 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sustainable 
Communities 

Strategy 
Ambitions 

Be 
Healthy 
 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE DO WELL 
WHEREVER THEY LIVE AND WHATEVER THEIR 

NEEDS 

INDICATORS OF SUCCESS 
 

RANGE OF OTHER IMPORTANT INDICATORS 

Stay 
Safe 
 

Enjoy & 
Achieve 
 Achieve 

Economic 
Wellbeing 

 

Make a 
Positive 

Contribution 

5 EVERY CHILD MATTERS 
OUTCOMES 

 

Local Area 
Agreement 
 

National 
Indicators 
 

PCT Vital 
Signs 
 

See SDP Service Plans for further details 

Performance Accountability  
Concerned with managers and staff who are 
responsible for improving outcomes for 
service users.  It focuses on three key 
performance measurement areas: 

• How much did we do (quantity) 

• How well did we do it (quality) 

• Is anyone better off (customer outcomes) 

Population Accountability  
Concerned with improving outcomes 
for whole populations at community, 
city or national levels.  The focus is on 
partnership groups who have an 
interest in a particular outcome, EG, 
“we want our children to be healthy”. 

Reduce the GCSE achievement gap 
by 25% between those in the worst 
10% LSOA Nationally against the 

Halton average 
Reduce the 

Proportion of 
children in poverty 

Increase the 
percentage of young 

people eligible for Free 
School Meals achieving 

Level 3 by 19 

Increase the percentage 
of vulnerable groups in 

Education, Employment & 
training (EET) 

Person centred 
plans 

Increase the percentage 
of young people who think 
their area is a very good 

place to live 

P
a

g
e
 8

0



 57 

Sustainable 
Communities 

Strategy 
Ambitions 

Be 
Healthy 
 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE WILL FEEL SAFE 
AT HOME, IN SCHOOL AND THEIR COMMUNITIES  

INDICATORS OF SUCCESS 
 

RANGE OF OTHER IMPORTANT INDICATORS 

Stay 
Safe 
 

Enjoy & 
Achieve 
 Achieve 

Economic 
Wellbeing 

 

Make a 
Positive 

Contribution 

5 EVERY CHILD MATTERS 
OUTCOMES 

 

Local Area 
Agreement 
 

National 
Indicators 
 

PCT Vital 
Signs 
 

See HSCB Business Plan for further detail 

Performance Accountability  
Concerned with managers and staff who are 
responsible for improving outcomes for 
service users.  It focuses on three key 
performance measurement areas: 

• How much did we do (quantity) 

• How well did we do it (quality) 

• Is anyone better off (customer outcomes) 

Population Accountability  
Concerned with improving outcomes 
for whole populations at community, 
city or national levels.  The focus is on 
partnership groups who have an 
interest in a particular outcome, EG, 
“we want our children to be healthy”. 

Stability of 
placements for 
CiC - Length of 

placement  

Assessments 
completed 

within 
timescales 

 

Parents with 
substance 

misuse issues 
receiving 
support 

 

% of CIN 
previously 

subject to a 
CAF 

 

% of NEET 
previously 

subject to a 
CPP 

 

Young people 
charged or 

cautioned with 
offences 

 

P
a
g
e
 8

1



P
a

g
e
 8

2



 59 

 
 

HALTON CHILDREN’S TRUST – PROMISES TEMPLATE  
 

 
PROMISES 

 

 
RESPONSIBLE 

 
RELEVANT 
STRATEGY/ 

METHOD 
1. We will make sure that our actions and decisions are guided by a single set of arrangements as this 
will assist us in being more accountable to our communities and enable children, young people and their 
families to receive the support and services they need when they need it 

Children’s Trust 
Board  

Children’s Trust 
Business Plan in 
place July 2009 

2. We will continue to prioritise safeguarding as an essential part of everything we do in order to 
continue to embed the values and goals of ensuring that safeguarding is everybody’s business 

Halton 
Safeguarding 

Children Board 

HSCB Business 
Plan 

3.  We will develop a Children’s Trust Resource Strategy  Children’s Trust 
Board  

Children’s Trust 
Resource Strategy 
in place Dec 2009 

4. We will support our workforce to be the best they can be by offering opportunities to develop their 
skills and knowledge in supporting our ambition to make a significant difference to children and young 
people. 
 

Children’s Trust 
Board  

Halton Workforce 
Development 

Strategy 

5. We will produce a Children’s Trust Equality and Diversity Strategy  
 

Children’s Trust 
Board  

Strategy in place 
Dec 2009 

6. We will develop a Children’s Trust Commissioning Strategy for Halton Children’s Trust 
Board  

Strategy in place 
Dec 2009 

7. The Children’s Trust will continue the strong partnership with Third Sector organisations to develop 
services for enterprising behaviour and entrepreneurial work and will continue to ensure Third Sector 
involvement in planning and delivery services. 
 

Children’s Trust 
Executive 

Group 

Children’s Trust 
Commissioning 

Strategy 

8. We will establish a range of secure, safe, stable and permanent accommodation, which young people 
leaving our care can move into, and stay for as long as they need it. 

Children’s Trust 
Executive 

Group 

Housing Strategy 

P
a
g
e
 8

3



 60 

9.  We will actively seek resolution to young people’s many concerns about transport across the 
borough by setting up a Young Persons Travel Forum to enable the voice of young people to be heard 
by those planning and providing transport for young people across Halton. 
 

Children’s Trust 
Executive 

Group 

Halton Local 
Transport Strategy 

10.  We will introduce locality working across the borough in April 2010  Children’s Trust 
Executive 

Group 

Integrated Working 
Strategy  

11. We will review and expand the use of CAF as a key mechanism in supporting our commitment to 
early intervention and prevention. 
 
 

Children’s Trust 
Executive 

Group 

Review undertaken 
and 

recommendations 
implemented 

Sept 2009 
12. We will work hard across organisational and professional boundaries to make sure disabled children 
and young people live in barrier free environments and communities 
 

Children’s Trust 
Executive 

Group 

Building Bridges 
Strategy 

13.  We will develop a Children’s Trust Business Plan within which a range of protocols will: 

• Clarify and define the relationship between the Children’s Trust Board and Halton Safeguarding Children 
Board 

• Clarify and define how conflicts between Children’s Trust partners will be addressed 

Children’s Trust 
Board 

Children’s Trust 
Business Plan in 
place July 2009 

14.  Each Service Delivery Partnership will develop and implement a business plan Children’s Trust 
Executive 

Group 

Plans in place July 
2009 

 

P
a

g
e
 8

4



 
REPORT TO:    Executive Board 
 
DATE:     4th June 2009 
 
REPORTING OFFICER:   Strategic Director – Children and Young 
People 
 
SUBJECT:     Primary Special Education Needs Review 
 
WARDS:     Boroughwide 
 
 
 
1.0  PURPOSE OF REPORT: 
 
1.1 To complete the review of Special Educational Needs (SEN) provision in 

Halton. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDED: That 
 

(1) Consultation on the revised proposals on the number of places 
and location of the provision for SEN units within primary 
mainstream schools commences; and 

 
 (2) Schools are asked to come forward with Expressions of Interest. 
 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Background 

Members will be aware that the Local Authority has been undertaking a 
review of Special Educational Needs provision within the Borough. 

 
3.1.1 The reasons for this review are: 
 

• The need to be able to describe clearly the nature of Special 
Educational Needs (SEN) provision that is required for Halton pupils 
and the number of places required both now and in the future. This is 
linked both to Building Schools for the Future (BSF) and the Primary 
Capital Programme (PCP); 

 

• Acknowledgement that Halton currently retains a significant amount of 
unit provision, with some of these units carrying a number of unfilled 
places; 

 

• Concern that the current range and scope of Special Educational 
Needs Unit provision may not be appropriate, and 

 

• As a result of (1), (2) and (3) the Local Authority is potentially not fully 
securing value for money in its SEN provision. 

Agenda Item 4cPage 85



 
3.1.2 A number of stages to this review have taken place. This has included: 
 

• 2005 Review of SEN Unit Provision 
 

• Strategic Review of Autistic Spectrum Disorder Provision in Halton 
(28th August 2008) 

 

• A local analysis of need 
 
3.1.3 Informal consultation has taken place on the original proposal for primary 

resourced provision and this has led to the revised proposal being put 
forward. 
The present provision of units in Primary mainstream schools is shown 
in Appendix 1. Appendix 2 presents a glossary of terms. 

 
3.2  PROPOSALS: 
 
3.2.1 Halton’s aim is to ensure that ‘Pathways’ for learning for SEN pupils will 

be personalised to meet individual and family needs. 
 
3.2.2 This will involve the current SEN Unit Provision across KS1 and KS2 be 

re-designed to provide flexible provision within a mainstream school, or 
early years setting, that enables the learner to spend as much time as 
possible in the mainstream part of the school, depending on the needs of 
the individual pupil. 

 
3.2.3 When it has been shown, through assessment, that the pupil’s needs 

cannot be met in a mainstream school alternative provision will be 
sought.  Prior to this decision there will be an expectation that 
‘reasonable adjustments’ (i.e. the application of the Disability 
Discrimination Act) using the totality of resources made available to the 
mainstream school. 

. 
3.2.4 For primary schools it is proposed that a consultation on revised 

proposals takes place considering the following areas: 
 

Assessment: Reception and KS1     14 places 
 
Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) KS1 & KS2   28 places 
 
Complex Language and Communication Difficulties  20 places 
 
Social Emotional or Behavioural Difficulties (SEBD)  14 places 
 
Complex Learning Needs – KS2     10 places 
(to include provision for 3 assessment places) 
 
Profound Hearing Impairment      6 places 

 

Page 86



3.2.6 Expressions of interest will be asked for from the primary schools to 
establish where the provision will be sited. It is conceivable that the 
number of places for specific types of provision maybe split across 
Runcorn and Widnes. If several schools wish to have the same form of 
provision a decision will be made based on a clear set of criteria. 

 
3.2.7 Within all primary resourced provision, joint working with all areas of 

Children’s Services including health will provide a wrap around provision 
for children and families. 

 
4.0  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1  These will be contained within the Capital Programme. There may be 

some additional costs incurred through the application of the Transport 
Policy. 

 
4.2 The current model represents a potentially inefficient use of resources 

and this review will create a more efficient use of funding for unit 
provision. 

 
5.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1  The Council’s ‘Strategy for the Inclusion of Pupils with SEN’ provides the 

policy content and framework by which Halton intends to meet the 
Special Educational Needs of young people in the Borough. 

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton 
 

• Increase choice, diversity, inclusion and high standards and reduce 
the surplus capacity within units in Halton schools. 

 

• Educational attainment is key to the future life chances of children 
and young people in Halton. All pupils should have the opportunity to 
the appropriate provision to match their individual need. 

 
6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
 

Educational attainment of children and young people will have a 
significant impact on future employment, learning and skills of Halton’s 
children and young people. 

 
6.3 A Healthy Halton 
 

All pupils will have access to appropriately aligned health provision 
within education. 

 
6.4 A Safer Halton 

Not applicable. 

Page 87



6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
Not applicable. 

 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 Provision for SEN within mainstream units does not match the needs of 

the Borough and young people. The present provision for units within 
schools does not provide value for money due to the number of surplus 
places. 

 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1  Educational attainment is central to reducing inequalities and ensuring 

the best outcomes for all children and young people in Halton with a 
particular focus on vulnerable groups. 

 
Review of Unit provision must be inclusive and consider the contribution 
of all schools. The review aims to increase diversity, access and choice, 
address under performance and provide more integrated local services 
for every child and family. 

 
9.0 REASON(S) FOR DECISION 
 
9.1 At present, there are surplus places within mainstream units. 
 
9.2 Mainstream SEN units are not matching the present and future 

requirements of the Borough. 
 
9.3 As part of Primary Capital Programme (PCP) a review of SEN unit 

provision needs to be undertaken 
 
10.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
 
10.1 To leave provision as it is. This would potentially leave the Council 

vulnerable to challenge. 
 
11.0 IMPLEMENTATION DATE 
 
11.1 The Primary SEN unit provision review to be agreed by July 2009 and 

implemented by September 2011 
 
 
12.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
Document Place of Inspection Contact Officer 

OFSTED Inspection of LEA – 
January 2004 

Grosvenor House Judith Kirk 

Strategy for the Inclusion of Grosvenor House Judith Kirk 

Page 88



Pupils with SEN – 2006/7 

Page 89



Appendix 1 
 
 

PUPILS ATTENDING PRIMARY SEN UNITS - APRIL 2009 

(inc Statements and Enhanced) 

KEY 
STAGE SCHOOL 

SEN 
UNIT 
TYPE 

NO OF 
FUNDED 
PLACES 

NO OF 
PUPILS 
ATTENDING 

SURPLUS 
PLACES 

KS1 Oakfield CP Inf Ass 12 3 9 

KS1 Simms Cross CP Inf Ass 12 6 6 

KS1 Weston CP Inf Ass 12 2 10 

Total   36 11 25 

KS1/2 The Brow CP SPAL 20 18 2 

Total   20 18 2 

KS1/2 Westfield CP HI 8 5 3 

Total   8 5 3 

KS2 Weston Point CP EBD 7 5 2 

KS2 Woodside CP EBD 7 7 0 

Total   14 12 2 

KS2 Moore CP MLD 12 2 10 

KS2 Oakfield CP MLD 24 13 11 

KS2 Palacefields CP MLD 12 4 8 

KS2 Simms Cross CP MLD 12 6 6 

KS2 The Grange Jnr MLD 12 10 2 

KS2 Weston CP MLD 12 3 9 

Total   84 38 46 
    

  
 

Grand Total  162 84 78 

Pupils attending -  65 have Halton Statements + 1 Other LA statement 

18 pupils are SA Plus Enhanced (84 in total) 
 
 
 

Page 90



Appendix 2 
 
GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 
Assessment 
Children who without early intervention, the potential impact of the difficulties 
the child is experiencing may have a profound and long-term impact on the 
development of academic and/or social and emotional skills.  Existing evidence 
from appropriate professionals suggests that information that may be gained 
from further time-limited, specific assessment could be expected to make a 
major difference to the child’s long-term achievement and/or well being. 
 
Complex Learning Difficulties 
Children who need a functional curriculum for the majority of the time, or have 
been labelled previously as having ‘severe learning difficulties’, but have no 
additional significant barriers to their learning. 
 
Social, Emotional Behavioural Difficulties (SEBD) 
Children who demonstrate features of emotional and behavioural difficulties, 
who are withdrawn or isolated, disruptive and disturbing, hyperactive and lack 
concentration, those with immature social skills: and those presenting 
challenging behaviours arising from other complex special needs. 

Complex Language and Communication Difficulties 
Children with communication needs that are both diverse and complex and will 
need to continue to develop their linguistic competence in order to support their 
thinking as well as their communication.  The range of difficulties will 
encompass children with speech and language delay, impairments or 
disorders, and those who demonstrate features within the autistic spectrum. 
 
Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) 
The term is used to describe children who have features in common, but who 
might also be different from each other.  Different sub groups exist within the 
spectrum but all children in these sub groups share difficulties in three areas (to 
a greater or lesser extent) referred to as the’ triad of impairments’. 
 
Children are affected in: 

• their ability to understand and use non-verbal and verbal communication 

• their ability to understand social behaviour, which affects their ability to 
interact with children and adults 

• their ability to think and behave flexibly. 
 
There is evidence that for some children their sensory perception and 
responses may be different. 
 

Page 91



REPORT TO:  Executive Board   
 
DATE: 4 June 2009 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Environment 
 
SUBJECT: Establishment of the Daresbury Science 

and innovation Campus Joint Venture 
 
WARDS: Daresbury 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 Over the last several years the Borough Council has worked with a 

number of partners to deliver a major international science based 
campus at Daresbury, building on the presence of the established 
Laboratory.  To move delivery forward, it has been concluded that this 
can best be achieved by the establishment of a joint venture company.  
This report sets out the process for the formation of a joint venture 
company and the implications for the Council.   

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION:  
 
2.1   It is recommended that:- 
 

(i) the principle of the joint venture as set out in this report be 
supported; 

(ii) the Council’s land ownership at Daresbury Firs be included in 
the joint venture; 

(iii) the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader and 
Portfolio Holder for Corporate Services be authorised to take 
any necessary action to establish the joint venture; and 

(iv) the Strategic Director, Environment in consultation with the 
Operational Director, Legal Services be authorised to take 
such action in relation to the use or disposal of land at 
Daresbury Firs as may be necessary to give effect to the joint 
venture.  

 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Since the Government published the Science and Innovation Investment 

Framework 2004-2014: Next Steps which launched the Daresbury 
Science and Innovation Campus (DSIC) as providing facilities that would 
be internationally competitive, support world class science and 
technology and maximise the opportunity for knowledge exchange, 
considerable progress has been achieved: The Daresbury Innovation 
Centre and the Cockcroft Centre are established, plans are well 
advanced for a significant grow-on building, Vanguard House and the 
Government has announced its intention to invest £65 million in the 
Hartree and Detector Science Projects. 

Agenda Item 5aPage 92



 
3.2 The Daresbury Science and Innovation Campus Board is now firmly 

established with membership comprising the Universities of Manchester, 
Lancaster and Liverpool, the Science and Technology Facilities Council, 
Daresbury Laboratory, the North West Development Agency and Halton 
Borough Council. 

 
3.3   Consultants have been employed to prepare a masterplan for the wider 

area which encompasses the Laboratory and adjacent buildings, 
Daresbury Park and Wharford Farm.  The adjoining Sandymoor Area 
with potential for future significant residential growth is closely knitted 
into the masterplan proposals as are improvements to transport 
infrastructure and issues of accessibility and connectively.  Work is now 
underway to convert the Masterplan into a Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) which will fit into the Council’s overall Local 
Development Framework.  A Strategic Development Group comprising 
Borough Council Officers and representatives from the Laboratory, 
NWDA, and Marshalls and Redrow, as the commercial organisations 
with the greatest involvement and land ownership in the area, has been 
established to ensure that the planning process for the wider area pays 
appropriate attention to the various significant interests in the area. 

   
3.4  Attention is now being paid in further detail to the consolidation of 

present achievements and to allow the development programme to 
accelerate.  The DSIC Board has concluded that its objectives can best 
be achieved by the establishment of a joint venture (JV), (with similarities 
to the process being followed at the nation’s other Science and 
Innovation Campus at Harwell near Oxford) and King Sturge and 
Eversheds were commissioned to undertake an options appraisal 
establishing a route for progress to be made.  The DSIC Board recently 
agreed the appointment of a Project Director on a part-time basis for 6 
months and following his appointment further legal advice has been 
obtained and some initial “soft market testing” has taken place.  That 
advice and these discussions have indicated that the approach being 
adopted would be appropriate and the DSIC Board at a meeting on 5 
May agreed the JV Model and the process required to move this forward. 

 
3.5   The joint venture will comprise a commercial partner working with the 

three public sector landowner partners (i.e. HBC, NWDA and STFC).  
The preferred model which the Board has approved as the method of 
procurement is as follows:- 

 
i. To utilise the OJEU process to secure a full service and flexible 

model. 
ii. To utilise the EU Competitive Dialogue process to secure the JV 

in place by 1st April 2010 (a project timetable prepared by 
Eversheds based on discussions on 9/4/2009 is attached for 
information). 

Page 93



iii. To utilise one set of retained consultants for the 3 public sector 
partners who will act as one body through a collaborative 
agreement. 

iv.   To create a JV with parity of voting between the public sector (1 
 vote) and the commercial partner (1 vote) AND where the  

commercial partner provides agreed land values, manages assets 
and the JV for a management fee(s) and takes a fee for providing 
development services.  Profits from development would go back 
into the JV and not be withdrawn by the equity share owners for 
an agreed period (this is a similar set of arrangements to those 
that exist at Harwell SIC). 

 
3.6 The STFC and NWDA have agreed to fund the creation of the JV. 
 
3.7 The discussions with Eversheds and the DSIC partners has established 

a clear way forward to have the JV in place by 1st April 2010.  The 
attached timetable is challenging but achievable at a cost within the 
original estimates.  The soft market testing has reinforced the views that 
emerged from the King Sturge work and there are a number of 
commercial partners with knowledge of the unique science and 
innovation market who are interested in being involved in the creation of 
the JV and see the sense in doing the planning and start-up work now in 
readiness for an improved economic climate.  Eversheds have been 
asked to clarify some legal points but it is likely that the three public 
bodies will need to form a “public sector consortium” to enter into the JV 
with a private sector partner. 

 
4.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR HALTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
4.1 As noted above (para 3.6) funding for the JV is being provided by the 

STFC and NWDA.  So far as Halton is concerned the input will be largely 
restricted to officer time.  Apart from the present commitment, it is 
anticipated that workstream sub-groups will be created to oversee the 
strategy/procurement process and documentation; for property, planning 
and infrastructure; and for finance and funding.  Halton will be 
represented on the first two groups and will have a significant 
contribution to make as the Local Planning Authority and Highway 
Authority for the area. 

 
4.2 Halton also has an involvement as landowner.  Daresbury Firs was 

acquired by the Council in 1997, and has been managed by the Council 
since then.  It is an important natural habitat and is used extensively by 
local residents for informal recreation.  The Firs abuts the existing 
laboratory and it has been considered appropriate to include this area of 
land in the JV to ensure that the Borough Council can be closely involved 
in the operation of the JV.  Inclusion of Daresbury Firs in the JV does not 
imply any change to its future planning status. 

 
5.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 

Page 94



5.1 Daresbury is a Regionally Significant Site and development of the 
Science and Innovation Campus would be consistent with the Regional 
Spatial Strategy and the Regional Economic Strategy.  Establishment of 
a JV would assist in the development and implementation of these 
strategies.  Establishment of a JV would also be consistent with the 
UDP, Corporate Plan and Community Strategy. 

 
6.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 The Council’s management and control of Daresbury Firs will be 

influenced by decisions made by the JV. 
 
 
7.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
7.1 Children & Young People in Halton: 
 Entering into a JV will accelerate the pace of development at Daresbury 

providing opportunities to raise aspirations for young people in Halton. 
 
7.2 Employment, Learning & Skills in Halton: 
 The opportunities for employment and improvement in training and skills 

arising from the development of the DSIC are considerable. 
 
7.3 A Healthy Halton: 
 DSIC will contribute an increased opportunity for employment with 

significant benefits for the health of local residents. 
 
7.4 A Safer Halton: 
 Establishing a Joint Venture would have only a marginal impact on this 

priority. 
 
7.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal: 
 Daresbury SIC is a major element of the Borough’s Urban Renewal 

Strategy and progress will be enhanced by entering into a JV. 
 
8.0 RISK ANALYSIS 

 
7.1 Will the exception of the inclusion of Darebsury Firs in the Joint Venture,  

the risk to the Borough Council is restricted to the potential demands on 
time and effort to bring the initiative to a successful conclusion. 

 
9.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1    There are no direct equality and diversity issues but the proposed joint  

venture should improve opportunities for all. 
 
10.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

Page 95



 
 

 
 
 

Document 
 
Daresbury Laboratory 
and Science Park File 

Place of Inspection 
 
6th Floor, Municipal 
Building 

Contact Officer 
 
Dick Tregea 

Page 96



 

Page 97



 

Page 98



REPORT TO:  Executive Board   
 
DATE: 4th June 2009 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Chief Executive 
 
SUBJECT: Parish Issues – Halebank and Sandymoor 

Parish Councils  
 
WARDS: Ditton and Daresbury  
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

To consider the following requests from Halebank and Sandymoor Parish 
Councils: 
 

1. Halebank – to increase the number of Councillors on the Parish 
Council from five to eight and to move the date of the next 
election from 2010 to 2012. 

 
2. Sandymoor – to increase the number of Councillors on the Parish 

Council from five to eight. 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION:  
 

(1) that it be recommended to Council that, in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 53 of the Local Government and Public 
Involvement in Health Act 2007 the date of the next election for 
Halebank Parish Council be 3rd May 2012; and 

 
(2) That it be recommended to Council that, in accordance with 

the provisions of Section 17 (2) of the Local Government and 
Rating Act 1997, the number of Parish Councillors on Halebank 
and Sandymoor Parish Council be increased to eight with 
effect from 3rd     May 2012 

 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
Requests have been received from Halebank and Sandymoor Parish 
Councils to increase the number of Parish Councillors from five to eight.   
 
The Local Government and Rating Act 1997 empowers District Councils 
to vary the number of members on Parish and Town Councils. 
 
Halebank Parish Council have also requested that the Council consider 
moving the date for the next election to 2012, making it the normal four 
year-cycle for a Parish Council term rather than two.  
 

Agenda Item 6aPage 99



 
The Parish Council has advised that when it was established in 2008 
there was a natural expectation, amongst electors, that the Council was 
being elected to fulfil a four year mandate. The Parish Council believes 
another election in 2010 is likely to confuse voters and undermine the 
transparency of the democratic system. The Council believe that there is 
a strong argument as to why a newly established Council should, in 
principle, be able to fulfil a full four-year mandate. An election in 2010 
will give the Council only one year which to set its own precept and 
begin to establish itself within the community. An election in 2012, would 
give the Council, and its elected members, time to find their feet, develop 
their roles and establish a record, which can be properly subject to the 
democratic verdict of local voters. 
 

4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no specific policy implications. 
 

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no financial implications. 
 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton – There are no  
 implications arising from this report. 
 
6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton – There are no  
 implications arising from this report. 
 
6.3 A Healthy Halton – There are no implications arising from this report. 
 
6.4 A Safer Halton – There are no implications arising from this report. 
 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal - There are no implications arising from this 

report. 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 

 
There are no risk assessment implications. 

 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 

 
There are no equality and diversity implications. 
 

9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 
None 

     

Page 100



 

REPORT TO: 
 

Executive Board 
 

DATE: 
 

4 June 2009  

REPORTING OFFICER: 
 

Strategic Director, Health and Community 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Redesign of Day services for people with Physical 
and sensory disabilities and older people with 
additional needs 
 

 
1.0 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1.1  To outline the key issues and development plan for the modernisation and 
redesign of Day Services for adults and seek approval to begin formal 
consultation with stakeholders. 
 

2.0 
 
2.1 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

It is recommended as follows: 
 
1) That approval is given to the following as a basis for consultation 

with service users, families, carers and staff of Bridgewater 
commencing in July 2009 on the following proposals: 

 
i. To de-commission Bridgewater as a base for the delivery of Day 

Services for Adults with Physical & Sensory Disability (PSD). 
 

ii. To continue the development of a “hub and spoke” model of 
dedicated local resources. 

 
2) That the Strategic Director for Health & Community, in consultation 

with the portfolio holder for Health & Community, be authorised to 
consider feedback in response to the consultation, to consider this 
with other information and return to the Board with 
recommendations. 

 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
3.1 As early as July 2004 the Executive Board recognised the need to re-design 

Day Services in response to the Government’s Agenda, ‘Valuing People, A 
New Strategy for Learning Disability for the 21st Century’. 
 

3.2 At this time it was agreed that there was a need for accelerated movement 
away from traditional building based services and to provide increased 
opportunities for people with learning disabilities, promoting social inclusion 
and independence. The examples of the closure of Astmoor as a base for 
Day Services for adults with learning disabilities have clearly demonstrated 
the value of community based day services as a more effective and 
preferable model of service delivery. 

Agenda Item 7aPage 101



 2 

3.3 Following that date there has been some significant progress. Astmoor Day 
centre was successfully closed as a Day Centre in 2007. The vast majority 
of people receiving Day Services with learning disabilities are now happily 
receiving the service from the community. New services have been 
developed and existing community based services strengthened. 
 

3.4 Current Services 
 
Staff based in Bridgewater are effectively responsible for: 
 

• Bridgewater Centre 

• PSD Outreach Team 

• Community Day Services (CDS) 

• Adult Placement Service (APS) 
 

3.5 
 
3.5.1 

These services can be characterised as follows: 
 
Bridgewater Centre 
 
As of February 2009, the centre provided a service for 58 people on a 
weekly basis.  The service is targeted at: 

 
1) People who have recently been diagnosed with a particular condition or 

who have experienced a trauma and need a period of rehabilitation.  
2) People who have been through and are now ready to move on to other 

facilities in the community. 
3) Younger disabled people who need ongoing day services due to the 

complexity of their condition. 
4) People over the age of 65 years who need ongoing day services due to 

their complex needs or frailty. 
 

3.5.2 The current service has been building based and, unlike other day services 
within Halton, has not taken full advantage of promoting access to services 
within local communities. The need to modernise has been recognised and 
a small working party has been established to explore options with service 
users and staff. As the working party, has progressed and the service and its 
assumptions have been questioned it has become increasingly clear that 
many service users have been provided with a service to relieve social 
isolation and provide the carer with a break. The reasons most commonly 
given for remaining in the centre have been; that service users need at least 
two staff to assist in personal care and, that service users attend the centre 
specifically for a bathing service.  
 

3.5.3 On closer inspection the reality is that most service users can attend to their 
hygiene needs without assistance or with one member of staff and only 7 
service users attend to access bathing facilities because of inadequate 
facilities at home. All seven are in the process of review with the home 
adaptations service and there should be no reason why anyone would need 
to access the centre to bath or shower. Nonetheless in the event that home 
facilities will not be ready in time service users will be able to access the 

Page 102



 3 

Oakmeadow Community Resource Centre where appropriate bathing 
facilities are available. 
 

3.6 As of February 2009 the number of service users accessing the service 
weekly has dropped to 58, of which 32 attend at least one activity in the 
community. All service users can access the community with support and as 
long as the venue provides accessible toileting facilities all can be supported 
to attend the venue. Of the centre population 14 services users have 
refused to attend activities outside of the centre and of these 7 access for 
bathing. It is anticipated that these 14 will be supported to look at 
alternatives between now and November 2009.  
 

3.6.1 Options: 
 
1) Continue to move service users into the community to a “hub and spoke” 

model. 
2) Discontinue the use of Bridgewater as a Day Centre and move to a “hub 

and spoke” model. 
3) Explore alternative use of site 
4) Do none of the above 
 

3.7 
 
3.7.1 

PSD Outreach Team 
 
The service is peripatetic with its base at the centre. It currently operates 
with 2 part-time staff for 38 hrs per week and is currently supporting 6 
service users in their own homes. It offers support across a wide range of 
needs from budgeting to education. 
 

3.7.2 The Outreach Service is underused and offers poor value for money. It is 
clearly an ‘historic development’, emanating from a real need but has not 
necessarily taken on the need to promote independence and have a clear 
outcome focus. 
 

3.7.3 Options: 
 
1) Discontinue the service and use the hours to support service users in 

daytime activities in the community to support the new re-design of 
services as a “hub and spoke” model.  

 
2) Absorb the model into the Mental Health Outreach team thereby 

extending the expertise of that team to cover people with physical and 
sensory needs and helping them to remain at home or in the community. 
This move would also provide better line management with clearer 
outcomes and expectations. 

 
3.8 Closure 

 
Given the direction of travel for meaningful daytime activities it is evident 
that Bridgewater as a centre has lost its raison d’etre. The expense of 
maintaining the building and some of the staffing functions e.g. cook can no 

Page 103



 4 

longer be justified. It is formally proposed that the centre be  
de-commissioned and the service be delivered within the community as a 
“hub and spoke” model. 
 

3.9 Consultation 
 

3.9.1 The process of increasing access to local community services has begun 
within the small working party but thorough and comprehensive  
consultation is required.  It is recognised that a small number of people 
accessing the service would prefer to remain in Bridgewater and staff will 
need to work closely with them to ensure their needs are met. 
 

3.9.2 A wide range of service users, carers, partner organisations will be 
consulted as well as the Council’s Healthy Halton Policy & Performance 
Board. 
 

3.10 
 
3.10.1 

Management and Staffing 
 
As more activities take place in the community, many of which are also used 
by ALD Day Services, opportunities for transport and staff sharing are 
beginning to present themselves. The combining of the two staff teams will 
provide some much needed senior support for the Bridgewater team who 
are experiencing some shortages.  
 

3.11 
 
3.11.1 

Future Model 
 
There are no services of this nature regionally. Furthermore to call the 
Bridgewater Centre a unit is to mislead. It is effectively a social club and any 
re-enablement elements it may offer can be equally if not better provided by 
Halton’s existing services which are targeted and personalised in people’s 
homes. This is not to underestimate the important role of social networking 
and the rehabilitive element that socialisation offers but this can be 
recreated in community settings. 
 

4.0 
 
4.1 
 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
The proposals are in keeping with the national modernisation agenda and 
the aspirations embedded in the recent ‘Valuing People Now’ paper. It also 
complies with Supporting People with Long Term Conditions. DOH pub. 9th 
Feb 2007. The Authority is committed to this agenda. 
 

4.2 The Authority has identified the need for extra care housing for older people 
as a critical need. The site would be appropriate for such a provision 
possibly replicating the model of extra care provided at Dorset Gardens.  
This could be considered as an option after we are clearer about the views 
of people as part of the consultation process. 
 

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

5.1 There is no doubt that the action of closure will generate some efficiency 

Page 104



 5 

savings. However, the closure of the building should not be interpreted as a 
dissolution of the service. On the contrary the service will continue in a 
greater variety of venues and settings and consequently continue to require 
support officers and staff to deliver. This is a process of modernisation and 
providing relevant services fit for purpose. Saving will come from the 
rationalisation of certain staffing functions, building running costs and 
utilities.  The total amount of potential savings and reinvestment will be 
considered within the Council’s budget setting process.  Currently the 
service has 20 staff (not all fte) and has a budget of £417,870. 
 

5.2 It is inevitable that some of the ‘hub’ venues will need additional investment 
to ensure DDA compliance. Where this is identified (and Murdishaw 
Community Centre has already been recognised as in need of an upgraded 
toilet and toileting area) monies from the closure will be reinvested. 
 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 

6.1 
 
 
 
 

Children & Young People in Halton 
 
The potential closure of Bridgewater and the delivery of the service from 
community bases is a far more attractive proposition to younger service 
users in the Borough.  It is noteable that no young people who have 
experienced transition access the building.  
 

6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
 
These proposals will increase the opportunities of service users seeking 
volunteering and employment .So far Cup Cake Caterers have been set up 
with service users from Bridgewater. The enterprise consists of some 8 
service users who bake cakes and confections for sale at Country Garden 
outlets. These include, Norton Priory, Murdishaw Café and the buffet 
service. These service users no longer attend Bridgewater and will be in 
receipt of permitted earnings once their production levels can meet the bill. 
In other areas a stained glass project has been set up and photography 
classes all of which are underpinned by a desire to engage in activities with 
value to the individual and others. 
 

6.3 A Healthy Halton 
 
It is difficult to evidence actual physical health improvements as a result of 
moving the service into the community but what is clear is that those who 
have moved out are happier and more fulfilled – and this must have a 
positive impact on physical health 
 

6.4 A Safer Halton 
 
The movement out of the centre will have an impact on transport and Fleet 
Transport in particular. Close liaison with transport and ALD services to 
prevent doubling up is essential. 
 

Page 105



 6 

6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 
The existing centre or land could be considered for an Extra Care Housing 
facility.   
 

7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 

7.1 
 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
 

It will be important to ensure that those service users who currently attend 
the centre for bathing or personal care are found alternatives before their 
current service is discontinued.  
 
While many sites in the community e.g. Pickering Pastures, are DDA 
compliant the reality is that they are not suitable for all types of wheelchairs. 
The Department may need to consider further upgrades to substantiate 
claims of fair access and non-discriminatory services. 
 

8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 

8.1 
 
 
 
 
 
8.2 

As mentioned above in 7.3 It is important to ensure that alternative venues 
and activities in the community are as readily accessible as the service 
provided within Bridgewater itself. There may well exist the need for 
additional expenditure to ensure that venues are fully DDA compliant. Such 
cases will be identified. 
 
The move from Bridgewater into the community satisfies almost all of 
Halton’s priorities identified in the Annual Self Assessment. In particular 
Health and Emotional Wellbeing as people become involved in activities 
they themselves choose and are more meaningful; Improved Quality of Life 
as people feel more valued and located in the community. Making a positive 
Contribution – for example Cup Cake Caterers who are a group of service 
users from Bridgewater who now regularly bake cakes and confectionaries 
for sale via Country Garden Kitchens at Norton Priory. The various increase 
in the number of community venues and associated activities significantly 
increases the level of Choice and Control identified as a priority for Halton 
and all of these increases peoples’ level of dignity and self respect. 
 

9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

 Document 
 

Place of Inspection 
 

Contact Officer 

Valuing People, A New 
Strategy for Learning Disability 
for the 21

st
 Century 

Runcorn Town Hall Audrey Williamson, 
Operational Director ,  
Health & Community 
 

Supporting People with Long 
Term Conditions . DOH pub. 
9th Feb 2007 

Runcorn Town Hall Audrey Williamson, 
Operational Director,  
Health & Community  

 

 

Page 106


	Agenda
	3a Liverpool City Region Multi Area Agreement
	ExecB4June09 LpoolMAA Append.doc

	4a Co-optee to Children and Young People PPB
	4b Children & Young People's Plan - KEY DECISION
	Version XVI - 26.05.09

	4c Primary Special Education Needs Review
	5a Establishment of the Daresbury Science and innovation Campus Joint Venture
	Daresbury  SIC Board Report JV Prog Report 2009 0505

	6a Parish Issues- Halebank and Sandymoor Parish Councils
	7a Redesign of Day services for people with Physical and sensory disabilities and older people with additional needs

